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Directors and Senior Management
ESREEEEAR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HUI Sai Chung, aged 66, is the Chairman and a co-founder of the Group. He is
responsible for formulating and overseeing the implementation of the Group's business
strategy. He is also responsible for the marketing and sales functions of the Group. He has

more than 43 years' experience in the plastics industry.

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 64, is the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director and a co-
founder of the Group. He is responsible for the overall operations and administration of
the Group. He has more than 43 years' experience in the plastics industry and he was
awarded the Associateship (Plastic Industry) by The Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries.

Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony, aged 57, is the Vice Chairman of the Group. He is in
charge of the R&D centre of the Group, as well as developing business activities and
opportunities for the Group. Before joining the Group in the present capacity, Dr Wong
was an Associate Professor in the Department of Industrial and Manufacturing Systems
Engineering of The University of Hong Kong. He holds a B.Tech (Hons) degree and a Ph.D
degree in Chemical Engineering and is also a Chartered Engineer, Chartered Scientist, a
corporate member of The Institution of Chemical Engineers and a member of The Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers. He had worked for two multinational chemical companies

prior to taking up a lecturer post with The University of Hong Kong in 1986.

Mr LAl Kam Wah, aged 62, is the Deputy Managing Director of the Group. Mr Lai holds
a Master of Arts degree and is a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong, the Law
Society of England and Wales and the Law Society of Australian Capital Territory. He has
been practicing law for over 29 years. He is also an associate of the Hong Kong Institute
of Arbitrators, a Member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors, Manager and Treasurer of one secondary school, Manager of

another secondary school, and Manager of one primary school in Hong Kong.

Madam LIU Sau Lai, aged 55, is responsible for credit control of the Group. She holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree from The Open University of Hong Kong. She
joined the Group in 1977. Madam Liu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of

Directors. She has more than 28 years' experience in plastic materials trading.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)
Mr NG Chi Ming, aged 48, is the Technology Development Director of Greater

China Department, Operations Director of Colorants Business of the Group and the
General Manager (Acting) of Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Trading Co., Ltd. He is responsible
for developing of plastics colouration, compounding technology and key accounts in the
Greater China market. He holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Chemistry from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic University's predecessor). He also holds a
Master of Engineering Management degree from the University of Technology, Sydney. He
joined the Group in 1988 and left in 1995. He re-joined the Group in early 1998 and has

over 24 years' experience in plastic colouration and plastic injection moulding techniques.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 62, is the managing partner of Paul W.C. Ho & Company,
Certified Public Accountants (Practising). He holds a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences
and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants,

Mr CHAN Dit Lung, aged 63, is the Managing Director of Wellknown Plastic Material Ltd.
He has more than 36 years' experience in plastic trading. He was formerly a lecturer of
Hong Kong Plastics Technology Centre in Polytechnic University. He is now the Honorary
Lifetime Chairman of Hong Kong Plastic Material Suppliers Association, President of
Hong Kong Plastics Recycling Association, Executive Vice President of The Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries Limited, Director of Hong Kong Plastics
Technology Centre and Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Brands Protection Alliance. He

has also been awarded the Chief Executive’'s Commendation for Community Service.
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Directors and Senior Management
ESREEEEAR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr CHING Yu Lung, aged 43, is the assistant to Chairman of an investment company. He
had been the Vice President - Finance for Hong Kong and China Gas Investment Limited,
a subsidiary of the Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited (B8P EE R AR A
7l), a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and was responsible
for the overall financial management of its joint ventures in the People’s Republic of
China. Mr Ching had also been executive director, finance director, company secretary
and qualified accountant of the Company. He has more than 21 years of experience
in auditing, finance and accounting. He obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from the Tsinghua University in 1992 and 2006 respectively. Mr
Ching is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a member of the American

Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr NG Tat Ching, Ben, aged 58, is a Director and President of Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic Materials Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Shanghai) Co., Ltd,, Ngai Hing
Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Dongguan) Co,
Ltd. and Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Materials (Shanghai) Ltd., and is responsible for
the overall business operations of the above mentioned group of companies. Mr Ben Ng
holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry (Major) and Statistics (Minor) from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group as a co-founder and an executive director
of the above mentioned group of companies in 1997, and has over 32 years' experience
in plastic industries globally. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Ben Ng has held several key
positions in various multinational companies for engineering plastic materials sales and

product marketing in Asia Pacific regions.

Mr WONG Chi Hang, Eric, aged 42, is the Director and General Manager of Ngai
Hing Hong Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and is responsible for the sales and
marketing in the Group's trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry
from The University of Hong Kong and a Master degree in Business Administration from
the University of South Australia. He joined the Group in 1994 and has over 19 years'

experience in sales & marketing.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Mr CHAN Ka Ho, aged 40, is the Chief Financial officer and Company Secretary of

the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration in Accounting and
Finance from The University of Hong Kong. He also holds a joint Master of Science
degree in Mathematics for Finance and Actuarial Science from City University of Hong
Kong and University of Paris-Dauphine, France. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder and a Certified
Financial Risk Manager. He has over |7 years' experience in auditing, finance and
accounting and is responsible for the financial, treasury, administration and human

resources management of the Group.

Mr HUI Yan Kit, Sam, aged 40, is the General Manager of Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Co., Limited and is responsible for sales and marketing of Colour Masterbatches
and Functional Masterbatches for plastic industries in Shanghai and other cities in Eastern
China. He holds a Bachelor degree in Arts from University of Toronto. He joined the
Group in 1998 and has over |5 years' experience in business management, sales &

marketing. Mr Hui Yan Kit, Sam is the son of Mr Hui Sai Chung.

Mr LUl Wing Cheung, aged 49, is the General Manager of Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Ltd. and Xiamen Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Co,, Ltd.. He is responsible
for the Group's Colour Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches in Southern China
plus overall management of the Ngai Hing operations in Dongguan and Xiamen. He holds
a B. Eng(Hons) degree in Mechanical Engineering from University of Newcastle upon
Tyne, UK. and Postgraduate Diploma in Management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a Chartered Engineer of the Engineering Council (UK.) and a member of
The Institution of Mechanical Engineers (UK.) and The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
respectively. Mr Lui joined the Group in 201 | and has over 14 years' experience in plastic
injection molding industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Lui has held several senior

positions in various companies for business management.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
| hereby announce the audited results of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (“the

Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year ended 30th June
2013. The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover of HK$1,868,990,000
(2012: HK$1,640,416,000) and profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$22,059,000 (2012: HK$1,365,000). Earnings per share for the year were HK5.97
cents (2012: HKO.37 cents). The Board of Directors recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK1.0 cent (2012: Nil) per share. Together with the interim dividend of HK1.0
cent (2012: Nil) per share, the total dividend payment for the year under review is HK2.0
cents per share (2012: Nil).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the period under review, as the global economy stabilised and opportunities
emerged from steady growth in Mainland China's domestic market, the Group recorded
an outstanding sales performance. For the year ended 30th June 2013, the Group's
turnover in China's market surged 33%, boosting overall turnover by 13.9% to a record
high of HK$1,868,990,000. The China segment occupied around 46.6% of the Group’s

total turover. Sales volume also increased by 9.2% from the same period last year.

During the year, stability in both plastic material and oil prices helped product pricing. The
Group's gross profit rose 29.9% to HK$ 183,890,000 (2012: HK$141,520,000). Besides, the
China economy started to pick up after the smooth transition of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") leadership, which helped the Group to increase market share there as
well as gross profit in Mainland China market. At the same time, the gross profit margin for
the year increased from 8.6% last year to 9.8%. Thanks to effective cost control measures,
taking into account other income such as a revaluation gain of investment properties,
profit before taxation climbed three times to HK$36,002,000, and profit attributable to
equity holders jumped sixteen times to HK$22,059,000 (2012: profit attributable to equity
holders HK$1,365,000). Basic earnings per share were HK5.97 cents (2012: Basic earnings
per share HK0.37 cents).

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

To reward shareholders for their support, the Board of Directors recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK1.0 cent per share (2012: Nil). Together with the interim
dividend of HKI.0 cent per share (2012: Nil), total dividend for the year will be HK2.0
cents (2012: Nil).

Among the three major businesses of the Group, the colorants, pigments and compound
plastic resin business segment achieved the most satisfactory performance. Turnover
grew by 10.6% to HK$398,956,000 year-on-year. During the year the Group's Shanghai
subsidiary has successfully entered the international toy and personal healthcare brand
market and further enhanced its penetration in the food packaging and automobile
markets in Eastern China. The Group has also entered the construction materials market
by providing anti-UV materials to customers. Elsewhere, operations in Southern China
have reported a satisfactory sales contribution to the Group. The performance of the
above two regions have driven turnover growth within this business segment. Moreover,
the Group has employed stringent control of costs and procedures in a bid to achieve
greater economies of scale. Consequently, gross profit margin increased by 2.7 percentage

points and profit before taxation surged by 43% to HK$47,321,000.

With the global economy stablising, the Group's engineering plastics business which
targets domestic along with European and US export customers, showed improvement in
the second half of the year over the first half. Tumnover for the year dropped by only 10%
to HK$211,971,000 when compared to the same period last year. The Group deployed
greater efforts to develop the domestic market for this business segment during the
year. Since orders from customers in Mainland China normally are more profitable, gross
profit margin rose slightly by 2% and profit before taxation amounted to HK$17,059,000.
During the period under review, the Group has developed application technology utilising
engineering plastics to replace the usage of wood and metal. This has enabled the Group
to successfully enter the fumiture and automobile markets, making contribution to sales.
Full operation of the new production line in Shanghai has not only boosted the Group's
overall operating efficiency, its leading-edge product technology has also enhanced its
competitive advantage, meeting the increasing standards of Mainland customers for greater
product quality. In addition, the Group intends to adopt its successful business model for
Shanghai's colorant, pigments and compounded plastic resins market, and actively expand

its sales network in Mainland China to capture the opportunities there.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Since the competition in the plastics trading business targeting local, and European and
US export customers is intensifying, product prices have dropped accordingly. However,
benefitting from the strong market demand in Mainland China and steady growth of its
customer base, sales of the Group's products rose, in turn increasing turover by 20% to
HK$1,255,620,000 when compared to last year. Gross profit margin was similar to that
of last year. Loss attributable to shareholders narrowed to HK$41,081,000. During the
period under review, the Group has developed new product lines, in particular providing
specialty plastics for electronic meters, automatic electronic appliances and automobile
parts in order to expand into these segments with growth potential. Meanwhile, the
Group's Chongging sales office targeting Northwestern China has commenced service

which should further enlarge the Group's market share.

PROSPECTS

With the unresolved Eurozone crisis and related poor economic performance across
many European countries and the ongoing slowdown in Mainland China's economic
growth, the Group will continue to face challenges in the second half of 2013. However,
recovery of the US economy has helped stablise exports in China, which the management
believes will present opportunities to the global market and the price of raw materials

should become stable. This will help consolidate the Group's overall profitability.

As for the overall business strategy, Mainland China remains the Group's key development
focus in the future, in particular Northeastern and Western China. The Group aims to
further increase the proportion of business from Mainland China within the Group's total
revenue. The Group will also accelerate the expansion of its sales network there. It will
build on its successful sales bases in Eastern and Southem China, extending its reach to
Northeastern and Western China, as well as integrating the sales network of its various
businesses to realise greater synergies and ultimately increase the Group's penetration

throughout the country.

In respect to its colorant and compounded plastic resin products, through the close ties
with the International Colour Alliance, the Group has secured orders from internationally-
renowned brands in the toy, personal healthcare products and automobile parts sectors.
Looking ahead, the Group intends to work towards long-term cooperation with more
interational brands while enriching its product mix, which should prove favourable to the

healthy growth of its business.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
PROSPECTS (Continued)

As for the engineering plastics business, the Group will initiate contact directly with
overseas manufacturers so as to improve its bargaining power and explore business
possibilities with more potential export customers. The Group will also expand into
markets in Italy, Germany and across Southwestem Europe to build a more diversified and
international customer base, thereby reducing the risk of relying on a very few markets.
In addition, the Group will develop products with higher profit margins to drive its profit
growth.

Overall, the management expects the Group will benefit from the rebound in export data
in China and the gradual recovery of the US economy. Thus, the Group's outstanding and
professional management team will continue to chart a pragmatic yet aggressive business

course while flexibly adjusting its business strategies to capture more future opportunities.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cashflow and banking
facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June 2013 the Group has available
aggregate banking facilities of approximately HK$570,743,000, of which approximately
HK$359,422,000 have been utilised and were secured by corporate guarantees issued by
the Company and legal charges on certain leasehold land and buildings and investment
properties in the PRC and Hong Kong owned by the Group (see Notes 16, 17 and 18 to
the consolidated financial statements). The Group's cash and bank balances as at 30th June
2013 amounted to approximately HK$112,082,000. The Group’s gearing ratio as at 30th
June 2013 was approximately 72.5%, based on the total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$344,938,000 and the shareholders’ funds of approximately HK$475,740,000.

Details of the Group's capital commitments and the Company's contingent liabilities are

disclosed in Notes 32 and 3.1(d) to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Chairman’s Statement
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SMERR
AEEZEERBTEFIERETL ARK
RET - REBENRBEBAXTHE - A%

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong Kong

dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group's purchases were principally denominated in

US dollars. The Group closely monitors currency fluctuations and manages its exchange ErREEREXRBERRERE RS
risk by entering into forward exchange contracts from time to time. INERRNEREXRBER

At 30th June 2013, the Group had outstanding commitments in respect of forward 7% EREETRZIVERR - AEBFTIVE
contracts in order to manage the Group's exposure in foreign currencies from its BHEH - RZZ-—=FXA=1TH RAR

ZERBAN RGBT

operations as follows:

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Sell HK dollars for US dollars THEBTUEAZET 1,518,114 2,747,940
Sell US dollars for HK dollars HEETUEABTT 8,870 171,600
Sell US dollars for Renminbi HEETUEAARE 653,640 175,500
EMPLOYEE INFORMATION EEER
As at 30th June 2013, the Group had approximately 708 full-time employees. The RZE—=F A=+H XEEEEHH

Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of individual employees
and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive scheme which is geared to the
profit of the Group and the performance of its employees, as an incentive to motivate its
employees to increase their contribution to the Group. The Group also provides social
or medical insurance coverage, and provident fund scheme (as the case may be) to its

employees depending on the location of such employees.

APPRECIATION

, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to
the Group's customers, suppliers and shareholders for their unfailing support, my fellow
directors, executives and staff for their hard work in the past year. The Group will, as
always, with prudence use its best endeavour to strive for its long-term development
and the best interest of the shareholders aiming at attaining more promising results in the

coming year.

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th September 2013

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the

year ended 30th June 201 3.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of its

principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by segment is set out in Note 5 to

the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement

on page 4.

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HKI.0 cent per ordinary share,
totalling HK$3,692,000, which was paid on 9th April 201 3.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKI.0 cent per ordinary
share, totalling HK$3,692,000.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are set out

in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in

Note |6 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note 27 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRITERALE
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30th June 2013, the reserves of the Company available for distribution, comprising
the contributed surplus and retained eamings, amounted to approximately HK$69,171,000
(2012: HK$62,781,000).

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there are
reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; (ii) the realisable value of the company's
assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital

and share premium account.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws and there
was no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the

Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out on page 149.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's listed securities

during the year.
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SHARE OPTIONS
On 5th December 2002, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Existing

Scheme”). Under the terms of the Scheme, the Directors may, at their discretion, invite

Directors and employees of the Group to take up options (the “Share Options”) to

subscribe for the shares of the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated

therein. Details of the movements of Share Options granted under the Scheme during the

year and outstanding as at 30th June 2013 are as follows:

BRE
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ARRIZBER-_TE_F+-_ARAAKEMT
B E ([ RITBRESE) - RIBBRE
AEZER RGN EEEUNERELARE
ZEZERESEMNAREAD RN 2 BRE
([EERRED - REBRE SR L 2 BRER
—E-ZFXAZTARERZEHNT

Number of Share Options
BREZRGBE
Granted  Exercised Lapsed
Exercise  Beginning during during during End of
Date of grant Exercise period price  of the year the year the year the year the year
RHAH A{TEHR 1@ £ FRRE  FATRE  FRAL £X
Other continuous
contract employees
EEMAHESR
3th February 2008 [3th February 2009 HK$0.78 500,000 - - - 500,000
—ZEN\F to 12th February 2014 078787
—At=H “ERNEF_AT=RZE
“E-PE-ATH
I3th February 2008 [3th February 2010 HK$0.78 500,000 - - - 500,000
“ZTN\E to 12th February 2014 0781
ZR+=H e s R =K
“F-IE-At=H
I3th February 2008 I3th February 2011 HK$0.78 500,000 - - - 500,000
—ZEN\F to 12th February 2014 078 87T
ZAt=H “Z——FZft+=HE
L
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
o
Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)
On 22nd November 2012, the Company has adopted a new share option scheme (the

“New Scheme") and terminated the Scheme. Under the terms of the New Scheme, the

Directors may, at their discretion, invite eligible participants to take up Share Options

to subscribe for shares in the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated

therein,

Details of the New Scheme are as follows:

()

(i)

(i)

Purpose
The purpose of the New Scheme is to enable the Group to grant Share Options

to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Eligible participants

Any employee (whether full time or part time, including any executive director but
excluding any non-executive director) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
and the persons to whom the Directors may extend an offer to take up Share
Options as referred to in paragraph (2) of Appendix Il of the circular issued by the
Company on 18th October 2012.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding Share Options granted and vyet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time. No Share Option
may be granted under the new Scheme if such limit is exceeded. The total number
of shares available for issue under the New Scheme as at the date of the annual
report is 36,920,000, which is 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as of
that date.

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share Options
granted to each qualifying participant under the New Scheme and any other option
schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options) in any |2-month

period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)
(v)

")

(i)

(vi)

Option period

In respect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of Directors may
in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall not expire more
than 10 years from the date on which a Share Option is granted and accepted by

the grantee.

Amount payable on application or acceptance
An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for a period
of 21 days from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$! is payable on

acceptance of the grant of a Share Option.

Subscription price

The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) daily quotations sheet on the date of offer for the grant
of a Share Option, (ii) the average price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option or (iii) the

nominal value of the share (whichever is the greater).

The remaining life of the New Scheme

The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years between 22nd
November 2012 and 2Ist November 2022 to offer the grant of an option to any
qualifying participants.

No Share Options under the Existing Scheme and the New Scheme were granted or

exercised during the year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2013 are set out in Note

35 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED
No interest has been capitalised by the Group during the year.

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRETAERLR
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony (Vice Chairman)

Mr LAl Kam Wah (Deputy Managing Director)

Madam LIU Sau Lai

Mr NG Chi Ming

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul *

Mr CHAN Dit Lung *

Mr CHING Yu Lung *

* Independent Non-executive Directors

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.

Mr LAl Kam Wah, Mr NG Chi Ming and Mr CHAN Dit Lung retire by rotation in
accordance with clause 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election.

In order to comply with the code provision A4.3 as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), separate
resolution should be set out for shareholders of the Company to approve the further
appointment of Mr CHAN Dit Lung as Independent Non-executive Director at the

forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject to

retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

The fundamental policy of the Group's remuneration and incentive scheme is to link
total compensation for senior management with the achievement of annual and long-
term performance goals. By providing total compensation at competitive industry levels,
the Group seeks to attract, motivate and retain key executives essential to its long-
term success. Senior management incentive scheme includes an equity component that
is designed to align the long-term interest of management with those of shareholders.
The remuneration package comprises of annual directorship fees, salaries, discretionary

bonuses and incentive scheme.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly
represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee meetings.

The remuneration package represents annual directorship fees.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual

General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which
is not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2013, the interest and short positions of each Director and chief executive
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFQ")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model

Code") contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at 30th June 2013
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Number of shares of the Company beneficially held

BERFEZENIRGHUE
Personal Corporate Family Other
interests interests interests interests
Name of Directors g AR EEER FEER HitriE s
Mr HUI Sai Chung Haueistes Long positions #F & 15,787,600 202,721,500 (a) — —
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong AR EE Long positions 4&f & 19,850,400 198,803,500 (b) — —
Madam LIU Sau Lai BAEBLLT Long positions &F & 1,423,000 — — @
Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRTARAT
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

ESRBEETHRAERARAT
HEMEEEERARGES 2

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED BER/SRBE#E)
CORPORATION (Continued)
Notes: BisE -
@ 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited (“Good Benefit"), a company in @  FERMTZ 19672150088 58 Good Benefit
which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (Note (c)). In addition, 6,000,000 Limited ([ Good Benefit]) # & © Ever Win
shares are held by Ever Win directly. Limited ([ Ever Win|)#5%5 Good Benefit B4 2
P+ R — (R () o tEah - 6,000,000
B AR i Ever Win EE£ 155 ©
50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by Mr HUI Sai Chung. Ever Win BIREI(E | A1yt &A% 50,000 B
Mr HUI Sai Chung and his spouse further own 33,957 and 5 class A non-convertible redeemable AL ERE - FHREERARES D
preferred shares of no par value in Ever Win respectively. R Ever Win AREE BT A KR ERE
B9 33957 IR 5 B
(b) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Evergrow Company )y & F KM P 21967215008 T3 B Good
Limited (“Evergrow”) holds a 45.1% interest (Note (c)). In addition, 2,082,000 shares are held by Benefitf§ A ° Evergrow Company Limited
Evergrow directly. ([Evergrow])# 78 Good Benefit B9 2+ H
A — R (MR (o))  1edh - 2,082,000 B 17
F Evergrow B 15 A ©
50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, Evergrow & JR T {& | M 7T 2 & 3 % 17 50,000
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong further owns 30,823 class A non-convertible redeemable preferred shares of BREFELEERE TEAXEERES
no par value in Evergrow. Evergrow AR E(ENF] K ¥4 A] 8 Ak )
30,823 % °
() The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit, which held () EHEGood Benefit(RZE—=F A=+
196,721,500 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2013, are as follows: ARBALDE 196721500 REH)BRAZ B
T
Number Percentage
of shares of holding
Name of Directors EEpg RHEE BREAL
Mr HUI Sai Chung Eaudyts 4510 45.1%
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong RS 4510 45.1%
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBLL 80 0.8%
Others At 900 9.0%
10,000 100.0%
&
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (Continued)

As at 30th June 2013, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting deferred
shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited, which are subject to an option granted
to Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited to acquire the said non-voting deferred

shares.
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il #% 2 8 ¥ 2 % FNgai Hing (International)
Company Limited ] & B Ll AT BT R D
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Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

FREREEEERHHE
Personal Other
interests interests
Name of Directors EEHAF BAES Hit gz
Mr HUI Sai Chung Eaudibale 200,000 50,000())
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong BN A 200,000 50,000(i)

Notes:
(i) These shares are held by Ever Win.

(i) These shares are held by Evergrow.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the subsidiaries of the
Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust for the Group as at 30th June
2013, none of the Directors and chief executives have any beneficial or non-beneficial
interests in the share capital of the Company and associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (Continued)

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above,

(@)  at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate; and

(b)  none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under the age
of 18 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or debentures of the

Company, or exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

At 30th June 2013, the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that the Company had not been notified of any
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or more of the Company's
issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and chief executives as disclosed

above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the

year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group's major suppliers are

as follows:
The largest supplier 19%
Five largest suppliers combined 63%

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers is less
than 10% of the Group's total sales for the year ended 30th June 2013 and therefore no

additional disclosure with regard to the major customers is made.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had an interest in the

major suppliers noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of Directors and the
Company's auditor in matters coming within the scope of the group audit. It also reviews
the effectiveness of the external audit and of interal controls and risk evaluation. The
Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr HO
Wai Chi, Paul, Mr CHAN Dit Lung and Mr CHING Yu Lung. The Audit Committee has
reviewed with management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the

annual financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2013 with the Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the Company was held by
the public as at the date of this report.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retires and,

being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th September 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance practices
and procedures which serve as an important element of risk management throughout the
growth and expansion of the Company. The Company emphasises on maintaining and

carrying out sound, solid and effective corporate governance principles and structures.

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report to the Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules (the “CG Code") throughout the year ended 30th June 2013, except for

the deviation as mentioned below.

According to the code provision A2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (chief executive for CG Code) should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this annual report, the board
(the “Board") of directors (the "Directors”) of the Company has not appointed any
individual to be the chief executive. The roles of the chief executive have been performed
collectively by all the executive Directors, including the chairman, of the Company. The
Board considers that this arrangement allows contributions from all executive Directors
with different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the Company's policies and
strategies. Going forward, the Board will periodically review the effectiveness of this
arrangement and considers appointing an individual as chief executive when it thinks

appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix |0 of the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transaction. The Company
has made specific enquiries to all Directors and all Directors confirmed they have

complied with the required standard of dealings set out therein during the year.
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EEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’ attendance

The Company's Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced composition
of executive and non-executive Directors. There is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship between Board members. The Board conducts meetings

on a regular basis and on an ad-hoc basis, as required by business needs. During the year,

the Board held a total of five regular board meetings, six ad-hoc board meetings and one

general meeting. The composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors are set

Exg
EZEHM EFEEAREZLELNEY
ARAMESGABHENRTONER  mE
RHMITESRENTESHASMRIFIE -
EXeRE AYECMGTS B REX
H@iﬁ/ﬁﬁZ@%°%$@R*%ﬁE¥
ZRURRISRMARTEE - RER
§$Eéﬁ$ﬂﬁmmﬂi$aam VN

out below: NEZEERER—RAREAG - EZGHKK
ESHREHBNT
No. of No. of
No. of ad-hoc general
regular meetings meetings
meetings  Attendance %8 Attendance BR3E  Attendance
Attendants HREE plexs HEAE SERB  HERE  AERB HERE
Executive Directors: HiTEE -
MrHUI Sai Chung (Chairman) StRsE (2E) 5 5 6 6 | |
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong TR A 5 5 6 6 | |
(Deputy Chairman and (Bl EE#
Managing Director) EFmr)
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony FEELT
(Vice Chairman) (BIEfE) 5 5 6 6
Mr LAl Kam Wah RipERL
(Deputy Managing Director) (GIEF#LHE) 5 5 6 6 | |
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBLL 5 5 6 6 | |
Mr NG Chi Ming REATE 5 5 6 6 | |
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHTEE :
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul REEE 5 4 6 0 | 0
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRikBEt A 5 4 6 0 | |
Mr CHING Yu Lung EmEELE 5 5 6 0 | |

The balanced board composition ensured strong independence exists across the Board

and has met Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules to have at least one-third of its members

comprising independent non-executive Directors. At least one of the independent non-

executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or financial

management expertise. The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 4 to 6

to the annual report, which demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and

qualifications.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’ attendance
(Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject to

retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three
independent non-executive Directors in according with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the independent non-

executive Directors are independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Role and Function
The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive Directors
and senior management, while reserve certain key matters for its approval. The principal

functions of the Board are:

J to establish the strategic direction for the development of the Company and set

the objectives of the management;

. to approve annual budgets, major funding proposal and investment proposals;

. to decide on matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions,

directors appointment, and dividend and accounting policies; and

0 to oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk

management, financial reporting and compliance.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The members of the Board are responsible for preparing the financial statements of the
Company and of the Group. The financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 30th June 2013, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2013, the members
of the Board have selected appropriate accounting policies and, apart from those new
and amended accounting policies as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30th June 2013, have applied them consistently with
previous financial periods. Judgments and estimates that have been made are prudent and

reasonable.
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EEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements (Continued)

During the year ended 30th June 2013, the management provided all members of the
Board with monthly updates in accordance with the code provision C.1.2 of the CG
Code.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor are set out on pages 39 to 40.

Continuing Professional Development

All Directors, namely, Mr HUI Sai Chung, Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, Dr WONG Chi Ying,
Anthony, Mr LAl Kam Wah, Madam LIU Sau Lai, Mr NG Chi Ming, Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul,
Mr CHAN Dit Lung and Mr CHING Yu Lung have participated in continuous professional
development by engaging in business activities beneficial to the Company in their
respective fields, including attending seminar, workshops, conference and courses offered
by professional bodies and self-studying, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills

50 as to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all Directors for
their continuous professional development. During the year ended 30th June 2013 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Company has arranged to provide the Directors

with briefing on the amendments to the Listing Rules and self-studying materials.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the liabilities of the
Directors that may arise out the corporate activities, which has been complied with the

CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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Corporate Governance Report

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Composition

A nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) was
established on 26th March 2012 with written terms of reference in accordance with
the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Nomination Committee consists of all
independent non-executive Directors and an executive Director. The composition and

attendance record of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

EEELRRSE

REZEE
ARFANREZZEER -_T——F=FH
“HRBEREB R AR BESEKL -
REZECHERBUFNTEZTR 2
TEFAK  HARMHFERLENT :

Number of meetings Attendance
attended/Total percentage
Attendants HEE HESERE ERY HEE
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) MEELE (FEELE) 2 100%
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRixEESE 4 22 100%
Mr CHING Yu Lung RINgESL A 272 100%
Mr HUI Sai Chung At B A 22 100%
Role and Function HERBE
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and REZEGAATHRIESSNEE A

composition of the Board (including the skills, knowledge and experience) on a regular
basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships; assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment

or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year to assess the structure, size and
composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 30th June 2013 to review the structure, size and composition (including the

skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board.
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EEERRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised on 26th
March 2012 for the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) in
accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee consists
of all independent non-executive Directors. The composition and attendance record of

the Audit Committee are as follows:

EREEE
RRBRIBH X2 RERRE AR BINE

RZEe([BRZEg )2 BREEEEN_F

—ZHZRAZTRBEH - BERZECHR2E
BIUFRTEFEN - EREEGZAKRE
RRCEMT

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HESERYBRE HE=R

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) MEELE (FEELE) 2/2 100%

Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIRBER & 2 100%

Mr CHING Yu Lung = 22 100%
Role and Function AERBE

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and credibility
of financial reporting and internal control procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate

relationship with the external auditor of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the recommendations
set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and Listing Rules. Given below are the main duties of the
Audit Committee:

(@)  to consider the appointment of the external auditor and any questions of its

resignation or dismissal;

(b)  to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature and

scope of the audit;
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Corporate Governance Report

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)
Role and Function (Continued)
() to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission to the

Board, focusing particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;
(v)  compliance with accounting standards;

(vi)  compliance with Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to financial

reporting; and

(d)  to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any matters
the external auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of management where

necessary).

For the year ended 30th June 2013, the Audit Committee met two times, in particular, to

review and discuss the followings:

. the auditing and financial reporting matters;

0 the appointment of external auditor;

0 the establishment of intemal control system; and

. the interim results and the annual financial statements.

Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the auditors and all

senior staff of the Group.
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EEERRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised on 26th
March 2012 for the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee") in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors and
an executive Director. The composition and attendance record of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

FWEES

AR BRIRE P2 R P BETE 2 AR R
HMEEe((FMREe ) CBEREDR -
——HZA-tABEH - FMEREEH={
BUFATES R —UATEFAK - HFHZ
Be sl kb FrRsmT

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HESRRE B HE=R

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) MEELE (FEELE) 313 100%

Mr CHAN Dit Lung PRIKBER & 33 100%

Mr HUI Sai Chung Attt BE S 4 313 100%

Mr CHING Yu Lung RIngERE 313 100%
Role and Function BERBE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and transparent
procedures for developing remuneration policies and making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of the individual executive Directors and senior
management. This includes benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment.
It takes into consideration on factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time

commitment and responsibilities of Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to assess the performance
and review the annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives. The Remuneration
Committee held three meetings during the year ended 30th June 2013 to review the
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee and the remuneration packages of

the Directors and the senior management of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the year, the nature of the audit and non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fee paid and

payable by the Company for such services are as follows:

EEELRE

BEET <

WNER - RRAGZEEME LR KBS EH
PRt 2 B2 MOFBERRTE - MARBIRZLSE
REENREN < ABRERNMT

HK$
BT
Audit services for the Group REEBIRE 2 EZRE 1,948,000
Non-audit services including: FEGIRGEIE -

— review of interim results —EHPHES 255,000
— taxation services for the Group — RAEBRME 2 HIERE 261,000

— agreed upon procedures on the Group's —REERFXBELH I ETIER
annual results announcement 22,000
Total k] 2,486,000

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Composition

A corporate governance committee of the Company (the “Corporate Governance
Committee) was established on 26th March 2012 with written terms of reference in
accordance with the CG Code. The Corporate Governance Committee consists of all
independent non-executive Directors. The composition and attendance record of the

Corporate Governance Committee are as follows:

ARBMEEERZEEN_FT——F=]
“TABRBTARENBEBEKL - &
XELRZECHERBUFNITESEN -
Ham R EesmT

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HESBERYERE HE=R

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) EELE (FEELE) 22 100%

Mr CHAN Dit Lung PRIKBER & 21 100%

Mr CHING Yu Lung RINgELAE 212 100%
Role and Function AERBE

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for developing and reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group and making
recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; reviewing and monitoring
the Group's policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and reviewing the Group's compliance with the

CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of the Company.
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EEELRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)

The Corporate Governance Committee meets at least once a year to review the
corporate governance functions. The Corporate Governance Committee held two
meetings during the year ended 30th June 2013 to review the corporate governance
policy in the Group and recommend the training arrangement on corporate governance

to the employees of the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the Group's system of internal controls and for reviewing its
effectiveness. The management of the Company has established a set of comprehensive
policies, standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk controls
for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information to achieve a

satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

For the purpose of further enhancing the internal control systems, the Company has
engaged an external consultant to carry out an on-going project to conduct independent
internal control review and to evaluate major operations of the Group. The Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Company and its

subsidiaries with no material issues noted.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and comprehensive
and transparent reporting of its performance and activities. Enquiries and suggestions
from shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) or investors are welcomed, and
enquiries from Shareholders may be put to the Board through the following channels to

the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary"):

by mail to the Company's head office at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Center,
|0 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong;

2. by telephone at telephone number (852) 2693-1663;
3. by fax at fax number (852) 2694-0877; or

4. by email at info@nhh.com.hk.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT (Continued)

Annual and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders. Announcements are
posted on the Company's corporate website http://www.nhh.com.hk. Constantly being
updated in a timely manner, the website also contains additional information on the

Group's business activities.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings to ensure a high

level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategy and goals.

The Company keeps shareholders informed of the procedure for voting by poll in
all circulars to shareholders which are from time to time despatched to shareholders
together with notices of general meetings of the Company. The Company has taken
steps to ensure compliance with the requirements about voting by poll contained in the
Listing Rules and the constitutional documents of the Company. The Board attends the
Annual General Meetings to answer shareholders’ questions. Poll results are published on
the website of the Stock Exchange and are posted on the Company's corporate website

shortly after the meetings.

According to the Company's bye-laws, members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of

Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BERTAERLR
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT (Continued)

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a
Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice") at the
Company's head office in Hong Kong at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre, 10 Wo
Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The Notice (i) must include the
personal information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
and his/her contact details; and (i) must be signed by the Shareholder concerned including
the information/documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed by the
Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected and consent of publication of his/her
personal data. The period for lodgement of the Notice shall commence on the day after
the dispatch of the notice of general meeting and end no later than seven days prior to
the date of such general meeting. In order to ensure the Shareholders have sufficient time
to receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate as a Director without
adjourning the general meeting, Shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the Notice
as soon as practicable, say at least fifteen business days prior to the date of the general

meeting appointed for such election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy on 26th March 2012
and will review it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness to comply with the code

provision E.1.4 of the CG Code.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e
pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ngai Hing Hong Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 41 to 148, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at
30th June 2013, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents

of this report.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30th June 2013, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26th September 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEWER

For the year ended 30th June 2013 BiZ = F—=F A =1 HIFE

2013 2012
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pl TR TR
Revenue g 5 1,868,990 1,640,416
Cost of sales HERAK 8 (1,685,100  (1498896)
Gross profit e 183,890 141,520
Other income RN 6 3,981 3643
Other gains, net Hith s — #ME 7 14,277 18,384
Distribution costs DA 8 (62,032) (51,563)
Administrative expenses THRx 8 (95,377) (90,687)
Operating profit il 44,739 21,297
Finance income st 335 310
Finance costs HBER (9,072) (10242)
Finance costs, net HBER - %A 9 (8,737) (9932)
Profit before income tax BRBLATG A 36,002 [1,365
Income tax expense MIES 10 (11,554) (8,230
Profit for the year REHH 24,448 3,135
Attributable to: AT AT RS -
Equity holders of the Company NG ES I 22,059 1,365
Non-controlling interests IS 2,389 1,770
24,448 3,135
Eamings per share for profit attributable to equity AEEARRE RN
holders of the Company during the year (expressed in M 2 B R
HK cent per share) (AERRANE)
— Basic —&EXR 13 5.97 0.37
- Diluted — 88 13 5.97 037

The notes on pages 50 to 148 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FS0E 48 BN AGEE MR RANEEY

statements. 3o

Details of dividends payable to equity holders of the Company attributable to the profit FERABIIRR 2 B IEHAMIEE 12 o

for the year are set out in Note [2.

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEaHkm=ER

For the year ended 30th June 2013 BiZ = F—=F N A=1HIFE

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRz TRT
Profit for the year KERF 24,448 3,135
Other comprehensive income: Hfvéralias
ttems that may be reclassified subsequently to income statement: G E iy e e A LI
Revaluation gain of property, plant and ¥ BERRBEEE
equipment on transfer to REME
investment properties, net of tax (Note 28(a)) ZBRBR E (s (P 5T 28(a)) 1,893 [15
Revaluation gain of an available-for-sale At HERREE Eff
financial asset (Note 20) g (P& 20) 413 188
Currency translation differences bE X HE 7,934 7,069
Other comprehensive income for the year AEHMEFE N 10,240 7372
Total comprehensive income for the year REFZE WA 34,688 10,507
Total comprehensive income attributable to: REWGREREER
~ Equity holders of the Company —RAIRE 32,264 8,675
— Non-controlling interests — IR 2,424 1,832
34,688 10,507
The notes on pages 50 to 148 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F50ZE 148 BRI ABALEMBRROE
statements. B -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HEEERRAR

As at 30th June 2013 R =F—=F XA =+H

2013 2012
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt £ TR TR
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FMEBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BE KRR 16 139,285 141,235
Leasehold land and land use rights ME T T3P AR 17 22,939 15,547
Investment properties REME 8 76,325 53,775
Intangible assets BV EE 19 — —
Available-for-sale financial asset AHHEMBEE 20 1,730 1317
Deferred tax assets BRERIEAE 30 4,924 5428
Deposit for acquisition of properties WEEME 2 EE — 8,827
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment mE - BERZER
and renovation costs RKEBRAR 2,991 4741
248,194 230,870
Current assets nEEE
Inventories =8 0 301,442 281,501
Trade and bills receivables BIRUA N ERRE 3 318411 280928
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits H KR - AR EkES 21,950 17,326
Tax recoverable QEAEESE 119 524
Derivative financial instruments fTEeMIA 24 570 233
Cash and bank balances B RRITESR 25 112,082 93,349
754,574 673861
Total assets BEE 1,002,768 904,731
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable AR (S R R
to the Company's equity holders
Share capital BRA 27 36,920 36,920
Share premium R4 (B 27 62,466 62,466
Other reserves HtbftE 28 81,619 71414
Retained earnings REBEH 28 294,735 276,368
475,740 447,168
Non-controlling interests IS 22,419 23613
Total equity et 498,159 470,781
The notes on pages 50 to 148 are an integral part of these consolidated financial E50F 48 BRMT RERGEMBRENE
statements. B -

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
SEEERER

As at 30th June 2013 R=F—=F~NH=+H

2013 2012
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt TERT FAT
LIABILITIES =V
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EETRIEEE 30 4457 5,400
Current liabilities mEaRs
Trade payables BIRMAR 26 120,352 111,032
Other payables, deposits received and accruals HEMAR  EhEIe RERER 19,246 15,046
Bank borrowings RITIEE 29 344,938 294367
Derivative financial instruments TESRMITA P 5014 2,730
Tax payable PRI TiIR 10,602 5375
500,152 478,550
Total liabilities Bwaf 504,609 433950
Total equity and liabilities mrEaRaE 1,002,768 904,731
Net current assets FREEE 254,422 245311
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBAR 502,616 476,18
On behalf of the Board REEES
HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong
SR FFEK
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
FE FIEEFREFLIHE

The notes on pages 50 to 148 are an integral part of these consolidated financial E50F 4BEHNMNT RESMBREANBEE

statements. e
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Balance Sheet
BERER

As at 30th June 2013 R=F—=#F~ XA =+H

2013 2012
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt THER FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries MEBATIRE 21 62,711 62,711
Current assets TEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE Wit B 2 R K 21 106,620 100016
Other receivables H e Wik 283 283
Cash and bank balances Be MR 25 197 245
107,100 100,544
Total assets BEE 169,811 163,255
EQUITY i
Capital and reserves attributable to the NRIBCR AR R i
Company's equity holders
Share capital IR 27 36,920 36,920
Share premium BRAHE 27 62,466 62466
Other reserves HAh 28 62,926 62,926
Retained earnings RE R 28 6,660 270
Total equity B 168,972 162,582

The notes on pages 50 to 148 are an integral part of these consolidated financial £50Z 148 AN ARG M BRRNOE
statements. B -

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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Balance Sheet

BEERE/ER

As at 30th June 2013 R=F—=#F XA =+H

2013 2012
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T THT FET
LIABILITIES AafE
Current liabilities mEEE
Accruals BIREH 839 673
Total equity and liabilities mERNERE 169,811 163,255
Net current assets BREEE 106,261 99,871
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTEAE 168,972 162,582

On behalf of the Board

HUI Sai Chung
FrHtEE
Chairman

TE

The notes on pages 50 to 48 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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HUI Kwok Kwong

HE

Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEESBHR

For the year ended 30th June 2013 BiZ = F—=F A =1 HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARRREEDH
Other reserves
Effik
Avalable- for
-salefinancial  Exchange
Share assetreserve  fluctuation Non-
Share Share option Capitdl  Revaluation ~ AIHE reseve  Retaned  controlling
captal premium reserve reserve reseve  BIBEE i3] eamings interests Total

hx  BAEE EREEE AARE BEEH Bh RBEE RIEN AEWER 0 2F
HKS000  HKSO00 KOO0  HKSO00  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKS0O0  HKSOO0  HK$O0D
T TEr TR TEr TR TEn  TAr  TEn  TEr  TER

At lstJuly 2011 RZZ—F+A-H 36920 62,466 415 408 5562 439 57260 278695 056 4TI
Comprehensive income Falis

Profit for the year AEEH - - - - - = = 1,365 1770 3135
Other comprehensive income Etralia

Revaluation gain of property, plant and nF BERREREETHR
equipment on transfer to investment THEREEEERENF L

properties, net of tax (Note 28(a)) Bifh & (P 28 ) - - - - 15 - - - - 115
Revaluation gain of an avalable-for-sale A ENEEE BiEkE
financial asset (Note 20) (Hizk20) - - - - - 188 - - - 188
Currency translation differences ERZE - - - - - - 7007 - 62 7,069
Total comprehensive income FRlmeE - - - - 15 188 7007 1,365 1832 10507
Transactions with owners HHEEIR5
2010201l dividend paid %H-%-%/
“E—EERERE - - - - = = ) )
Dividends paid tonon-controling nterests %1 PaRiAIER 28 = = = = = = = — (130 (13%0)
Disposal of a subsidary (Note 31(c)) & -MBARM3I () = = = = = = = = 635 63
Totaltransactions with owners HHEEIRF LR = = = = = = ) (Y
At 30th June 2012 RZF-—£57A=1H 36920 62,466 415 408 5697 627 64267 276368 Bel3 47078l

The notes on pages 50 to 148 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F50E 148 AN Rtz e BT RR N BEE

statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HEEEBER

For the year ended 30th June 2013 BiE = F—=F N A=1HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

DRRREABG
Other reserves
AfbGE
Available- for
-sale financial  Exchange
Share asset reserve fluctuation Non-
Share Share option Capital  Revalwation ~ FI{RHE reserve  Retained  controlling
capial  premium reserve reserve reeve  BEE EX earnings  interests Total

Bx  BAaf BRERE RARE EMER 0 BE  RDER RERN FEMER 0 48
HKS00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HK$O000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000
thn TEn TRn TRn TRx TRx TRx TRR TR TR

At Ist July 2012 R_E-—F+A-H 36920 62,466 415 408 5,697 627 64267 276368 BeI3 470781
Comprehensive income Falis

Profitfor the year EET - - = = = = - 005 2389 24448
Other comprehensive income Eira s

Revaluation gain of property, plant and % BEREEEEETH
equipment on transfer to investment REitRREERERE
properties, net of tax (Note 28(a)) nEzBREERYE

(F328(a)) = = = — 1,893 — — — - 1,893
Revaluation gain of an available-for-sale Atk EBH AR
financial asset (Note 20) SftlE(HE W) = = = = = 413 = = = 413
Currency transation diferences EiEE - - - - - - 7899 = 3 7934
Total comprefensive incorne FRmaE - - - = 1,893 413 89 209 24 34688
Transactions with owners HBFEEIRS
20122013 inerim dividend paid =5-=/
“R-CEERERE - = = = = = ) L))
Dividends paid to non-controling interests X2 PR HIER 2 RS - - - - - - - - (3618) (3618
Total transactions with owners BRELRHEH - - - - - - - (369) (3618) (7310)
At 30th June 2013 RZZ-Z%£/ A=1H 36,920 62,466 415 408 7590 1,040 72,166 294735 2419 498,159

The notes on pages 50 to 148 are an integral part of these consolidated financial E50F 148 BRI RS A BRRMERE

statements. o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SGEIRERER

For the year ended 30th June 2013 BiZ = F—=F A =1 HIFE

2013 2012
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pl &£ TERr THET
Cash flows from operating activities REXBRER
Cash generated from operations REXBHEEZR S 31() 14,024 83902
Hong Kong profits tax refund/(paid) EHBEBMER 145 (5210)
The People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") EAREARSME([HE])
income tax paid g (6,537) (2,702)
Net cash generated from operating activities REEXBREEZFRE 7,632 75990
Cash flows from investing activities REEBZHER
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BERHR (11,129) 8917)
Purchase of leasehold land and land use rights BEHE TR T E AR (7,689) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BERREER
plant and equipment 31(b) 121 275
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment W% - B RRBEREERNK
and renovation costs (2,991) (4741)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE— B A] 31(c) — 29
Net cash used in investing activities REXBAERAZERE (21,688) (13,354)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEXB RSN
New bank loans FRIRTER 83,079 81971
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (72,717) (88423)
Increase/(decrease) in trust receipt loans =Rl ETE M,/ CRd) 37,152 (45,938)
Repayment of capital element of finance leases BEREMEEAHN — (235)
Interest element of finance lease payments RMERENSHH — )
Dividends paid to non-controling interests XA TSI 2 RS (3,618) (1,380)
Dividends paid X IRE (3,692 (3.692)
Interest received EWFIE 335 310
Interest paid on bank borrowings ERRITEEMS (11,230 (10,604)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities MEXBMES/ (FR)2FHE 29,309 (67,993)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents BeRBReSE2EM/ CRD) 15,253 (5,357)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FPzRekReEFH 31(d) 88,958 93233
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEERE BT B l,664 1,082
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRzZAE KR FH 31(d) 105,875 88,958

The notes on pages 50 to 148 are an integral part of these consolidated financial £50% 148 AN ARG M BRI EEH

statements. e
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of plastic
materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and engineering plastic

products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HMI I,

Bermuda.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have been approved for

issue by the Board of Directors on 26th September 201 3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS™).
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss,

which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.|  Basis of preparation (Continued)

@
0

Effect of adopting amendments to standards

The Group has adopted the following amendment to standard which

is mandatory for the Group's financial year beginning on Ist July 2012:

Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS") | (Amendment)
BRGREAE | R (BIIX)

The adoption of the above amendment to standard has had no
material effect on the Group's result and financial position, except for

certain disclosures in respect of the amendment of HKAS I.

In December 2010, the HKICPA amended HKAS 12, “Income Taxes",
to introduce an exception to the principle for the measurement of
deferred tax assets or liabilities arising on an investment property
measured at fair value. It introduced a rebuttable presumption that
an investment property measured at fair value is recovered entirely
through sale. This presumption is rebutted if the investment property
is depreciable and is held by within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through sale. The
amendment is applicable retrospectively to annual periods beginning
on or after Ist January 2012 and the Group has early adopted this
amendment retrospectively for the financial year ended 30th June

2012.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 IEENBRMESE

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2] HEEEE)

(b)  The following new standards, amendments to standards and () UTRAELMHELIFREE
interpretations have been issued but are not effective for the year ZE-ZHERA=THLER
ended 30th June 2013 and have not been early adopted: HIREE AR HER - &

HKFRS | (Amendment)

ERMEFTMRRE L ER
PR -

Government Loans !

BRMBREERSE | R(BITX) BHEE

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities '

BRAMBREENE 7 RBIILX) BHEERMBABIHEHENRE'

HKFRS 9
BAMBRELERE IR

HKFRS 10
BAMBREERNE 105

HKFRS 11
BAMBREENS | H

HKFRS 12
BRMBREERE 125

HKFRS 13
BAMBREREASE 35

HKAS 19 (2011)

BREREAE 19K (=T~

HKAS 27 (2011)

B ENR 7 R(ZF—

HKAS 28 (201 1)

B EAFBR(ZF—

52

Finandial Instruments >

ERIA®

Consolidated Financial Statements !

HAMBRE

Joint Arrangements !
BERH

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities !

REMEBOBRHE

Fair Value Measurement '

AR

Employee Benefits !

=) BIEA

Separate Financial Statements '

=) B BHK

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures '
=) REERRIRAEEBHRE
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2

2./

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of preparation (Continued)

()

(Continued)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)
ERGTERNE2RUER)

HKAS 36 (Amendment)
ERGTEAE6RUERAR)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)
BB G ERIE 9RUEFTAR)

Hong Kong International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“HK (IFRIC)")
-Int 20

FE(BRMBERERBRES) —22E20%

HK (IFRIC) - Int 21
BB (ARMBERERELZEEY) 2252 %

Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
BENBRELERETHR K
BEANBRELRAEIRETAR)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS |1 and HKFRS 12
BEMBRERRE 105 - BBUBRSELEL
F I RRBEMBEREENS 125K (BITA)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (201 1)

BEAVBIWEEAE 105 - BAVBWELEL
FNRREBEHENLE R (ZE——)
(B5T7K)

HKFRSs (Amendment)
ZREBMBHREER (BFTAX)

Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on Ist July 2013

2

3

Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on Ist July 2014
Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on Ist July 2015

R EMBRRM

TESHBREMEE
2.1 HEREE(E)
b)) (&)

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 2

PHEERMBAGBHOEA

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets 2

FMBEERN AR RIERE?

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting 2
TAETAZBEREE REH st 2R

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine !

BRTRN A AP B B FUERAAS

Levies ?

P&

Mandatory Effective Date at HKFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures *
BREMBREERE 9 FRRH AR B BERE

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other entities: Transition Guidance '

FAMBRE AL RNEMERNERRE
BERES|

Investment Entities 2

RERE’

Annual Improvements 2009 — 201 | Cycle !
“ETNFE-T—FRANFENRE

mAKE - T-=F+ A - BRNFRARNER
 BAKE-T-IFLA - RENFRARER
AR "R -RFLA - RRNFRARER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.|  Basis of preparation (Continued)

()

(Continued)

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of above new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations will not result in a

significant impact on the results and financial position of the Group.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the

Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to 30th June.

@)

Subsidiares

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity. The Group also
assesses existence of control where it does not have more than 50%
of the voting power but is able to govern the financial and operating
policies by virtue of de-facto control. De-facto control may arise from
circumstances where it does not have more than 50% of the voting
power but is able to govern the financial and operating policies by
virtue of de-facto control. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-

consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
22 Consolidation (Continued)

@

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on acquisition
by acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest's proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s

identifiable net assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
22 Consolidation (Continued)

@

®)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the fair value of non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in the consolidated

income statement.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment
losses (Note 2.9). Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration
arising from contingent consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable.

Changes in ownership interests

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions - that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-

controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

22

2.3

Consolidation (Continued)

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries
When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value, at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised

in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the

Executive Directors of the Company that make strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

24 Foreign currency translation

@

)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency").
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and the Group's

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the income statement within “finance income or cost”.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the

income statement within “other gains/losses”.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as available-for-sale, are included in other

comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

24 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

©

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the

transactions); and

@iy all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are

recognised in equity.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

25

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the income statement during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation from
the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended use.
Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation
on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their

costs to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Leasehold land classified as finance lease Shorter of the remaining

lease term or useful life
—  Buildings 2% - 2.5%
— Leasehold improvements Shorter of the unexpired

lease term or 20%

— Machinery and equipment 12.5%
— Fumiture, fixtures and office equipment 20%
— Motor vehicles 20%
— Tools and moulds 20%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

26

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset's carrying amount
is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount of the relevant assets and are recognised in the

income statement.

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property carried at
fair value, it is reclassified as investment property. The difference between
the fair value and the carrying amount of the property at the date of transfer
is recognised in revaluation reserve. Subsequent changes in the fair value of
the investment property are recognised in the income statement as part of

other gains/losses.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as
property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of reclassification

becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which various plants
and buildings are situated for a period from 46 to 50 years. Amortisation of
leasehold land and land use rights is calculated on a straight-line basis over

the period of leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified as investment
property. Investment property comprises land held under operating leases
and buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operating leases
are classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest of the
definition of investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted

for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related

transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined annually by independent
external professional valuers. Fair value is determined based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location
or condition of the specific asset. Changes in fair values are recorded in the

income statement as part of other gains/losses.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during

the financial period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is determined by
comparing the proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment property

and is recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

28

2.9

Intangible assets

Technical know-how

Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of plastic products. Acquired technical
know-how is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives of

five years.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available for use are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for

possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount to the extent that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the

income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9  Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-financial assets

(Continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is
declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial

statements of the investee's net assets including goodwill

2.10 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at

initial recognition.

(a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within 12 months of the balance sheet date; otherwise, they

are classified as non-current.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

)

©

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities
greater than |2 months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables
include ‘trade and bill receivables', ‘other receivables and deposits' and
‘cash and bank balances’ in the consolidated balance sheet (Notes 23
and 25).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
the investment matures or management intends to dispose of the

investment within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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e MR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any

provision for impairment.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are presented in the income statement within
“other gains/losses” in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when the Group's right to receive

payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified

as available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the

income statement as gains and losses from investment securities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRM

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 IEENBRMESE
210 HEEE&)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the

income statement when the Group's right to receive payment is established.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or

realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.11 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of

financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with

defaults.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1l Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss

is recognised in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor's
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is

recognised in the income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss - is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments

are not reversed through the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

212

213

2.14

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair values.
The method of recognising the resulting gains or losses depends on whether
the derivative is designated and qualified as a hedging instrument, and if so,

the nature of the item being hedged.

As the Group's derivative financial instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments
are recognised immediately in the income statement within “other gains/

losses”.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.

If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with

banks and bank overdrafts, if any.

2.16 Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. Financial
liabilities (including trade payables) are initially measured at fair value, and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. An equity instrument is any contract that does not meet the
definition of financial liability and evidences a residual interest in the assets of

the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, net of tax, directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a

deduction from the proceeds.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the end of the reporting period.

2.18 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying assets are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged

to the income statement in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRM

2.19 E@&ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, its subsidiaries and its associate operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of

amounts expected to be paid to the relevant tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from initial recognition of an
asset or a liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or

loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or

the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associate, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net

basis.

2.20 Employee benefits

(a)  Pension obligations
The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes. A defined contribution scheme is a pension plan
under which the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further legal or constructive obligations to

pay further contributions once the contributions have been paid.

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its relevant employees makes monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employee’s relevant income with a maximum
of HK$ 1,250 per month, as defined in the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance. The contributions are fully and immediately

vested in the employees.

Annual Report £ E &
2012/ 2013

2

TESHHEMEE)
219 EHREZFEHE)

2.20

BRIEAR SR E N D B AT EE
BEEAMEHARREZERERL
B - R EREBR AR AR A
BREREE  AEERRHED
AIZREMELERZRELRET
PSR -

EREEAMTENHE BHIEE
ERZHHEaERKE  BETMH
SHEEMAGSRAR—HBEE
@%ﬁ%ﬁi%ﬁ$ﬁﬁ%ﬁi%
BEERNFEEELEMERE
BB - BIRT B IE TS ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ
EE K o

ESEF

(a) BT HE
AEE2EETREMRKE
KestEl - RERREEE
AEBUAES 2%
BERMRALLAETENR
RERBRET BI(E L R 2 RAK
®FE AREERHEX
& ENEgE—SNREE -

$EIRE/%E§ME

watEl([REEEE]) -
ﬁ%ﬁFéHJ AEER
FRRBHAZENEES
BRERESERTNE
MBABD 2 BRI
5 FRAEHI250%
Lo WERRZHANEEE
TEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

@

()

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group also contributes to certain defined contribution schemes
for its employees in the Mainland China. Contributions are made by
the Group on a monthly basis to those state-sponsored retirement
plans based on a percentage of the relevant income of the relevant
employees. The Group has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions beyond its contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations

payable to retired employees.

Contributions made are recognised as employee benefits expenses
when they are due and are not reduced by contribution forfeited by
those relevant employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments

is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leaves are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liabilities
for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and

materity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

©

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, including any market performance conditions;
excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example,

the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest.
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-
market performance and service conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the income statement,

with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium

when the options are exercised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)  Bonus entitlements
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected to
be settled within twelve months and are measured at the amounts

expected to be paid when they are settled.

2.2] Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is

recognised as interest expense.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Leases

®

(i)

Obperating leases (as a leasee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-

line basis over the period of the lease.

Finance leases

The Group leased certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of
property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the

minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
are included in current and non-current liabilities. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to the income statement over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest

on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values
and are subsequently measured at the higher of (i) the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
the income statement over the period of the relevant liabilities and (i) the
amount of which the Group is obligated to reimburse the recipient under

the financial guarantee contracts.

2.24 Revenue and income recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of the Group's
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and

discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities as
described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the

specifics of each arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when products have been delivered
to the customer, the customer has accepted the products and

collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(i) Provision of logistic services
Revenue from the provision of logistic services, including freight

forwarding services, is recognised when services are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.24 Revenue and income recognition (Continued)
(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

(iv)  Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease

period.

2.25 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group's and the Company's financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders for final

dividend and Board of Directors for interim dividend.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk, and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group. The use
of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures is govered by the
Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in
order to manage those risks. The Group does not use derivative financial

instruments for speculative purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

Foreign exchange nisk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC with
transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), Renminbi
(“RMB™) and US dollar ("USD"). Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity's functional currency.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to USD and RMB. Since the HK$ is
pegged to USD, management are of the opinion that the exchange

rate risk exposure arising from USD is relatively insignificant.

Management has a policy to require group companies to manage
their foreign exchange risk against functional currency. It mainly
includes managing the exposures arise from sales and purchases made
by the relevant group companies in currencies other than their own
functional currencies. The Group also manages its foreign exchange
risk by performing regular reviews of the Group's net foreign
exchange exposures and has entered into certain foreign exchange
contracts to manage foreign exchange risks. As at 30th June 2013, the
Group had certain outstanding forward foreign currency contracts
mainly to sell/purchase USD and RMB, details of which have been
disclosed in Note 24. Certain of the Group's receivables, cash and
bank balances, trade payables and borrowings were also denominated
in foreign currencies, details of which have been disclosed in Notes

23, 25,26 and 29.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

()

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 30th June 2013, if HK dollar had weakened/strengthened by 5%
against RMB, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been HK$2,389,000 (2012: HK$1,667,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of foreign currency-denominated financial assets and
liabilities. The Directors however are of the opinion that any changes
in fair value of the Group's forward foreign exchange contracts, as a
result of any reasonable changes in exchange rate between HKD and
USD/RMB as at 30th June 2013 and 2012, would have no significant

financial impact to the Group.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for the cash at bank, details of
which are disclosed in Note 25. The Group's exposure to changes in
interest rates is mainly attributable to its borrowings, details of which
are disclosed in Note 29. Borrowings carry at floating rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk whereas those carry at fixed

rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group will review whether bank borrowings bearing fixed or
floating rates should be drawn from time to time with reference to

the trend of changes in interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

®)

©

(@

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 30th June 2013, if the interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year would have been HK$394,000 (2012: HK$420,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest income on cash
at bank net off with higher/lower interest expense on floating rate

borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk in relation to its plastic
materials which is largely dependent on the oil price. The Group
closely monitors the price of its raw materials in order to determine

its pricing strategies.

Credit nisk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
carrying amounts of cash at bank, trade and bills receivables, deposits
and other receivables, derivatives financial instruments and available-
for-sale financial assets included in the consolidated balance sheet
represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to

its financial assets.
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e MR

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

Credit risk (Continued)

Substantially all of the Group's cash at bank are deposited in major
financial institutions located in Hong Kong and the PRC, all derivative
financial instruments are also entered into with these financial
institutions, which management believes are of high credit quality.
The Group has a policy to limit the amount of credit exposure to
any financial institution and management does not expect any losses

arising from non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sale of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history and the
Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers. Normally

the Group does not require collaterals from trade debtors.

Management makes periodic collective assessment as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of trade and other receivables
(including deposits made) based on historical payment records, the
length of the overdue period, the financial strength of the debtors
and whether there are any disputes with the relevant debtors.
The Group's historical experience in collection of trade and other
receivables falls within the recorded allowances and the Directors are
of the opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible receivables
has been made in these consolidated financial statements. Other than
a specific circumstance as detailed in Note 7, the Directors are also of
the opinion that deposits are made to credit worthy parties and do

not expect non-performance of the counterparties.

As at 30th June 2013, the Company had provided guarantees
in respect of banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries
amounting to HK$359,422,000 (2012: HK$323,200,000). Credit risk

in connection with such guarantees is considered to be minimal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Liguidiity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group aims to maintain

flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

The Group's primary cash requirements have been for additions
of and upgrades on property, plant and equipment, settlement of
borrowings, payment for trade and other payables, and payment for
operating expenses. The Group mainly finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of internal resources and bank

borrowings.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains sufficient cash balances
and adequate credit facilities to meet its liquidity requirements in the

short and long-term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Liguidity risk (Continued)

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding the liquidity structure of the
overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of the Group. The
Group also maintains a prudent level of liquid assets and committed
banking facilities to ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to
meet any unexpected and material cash requirements in the ordinary
course of business. As at 30th June 2013, the total banking facilities
made available to the Group amounting to HK$570,743,000 (2012:
HK$521,139,000) of which HK$359,422,000 (2012: HK$323,200,000)
was being utilised by the Group.

The table below analyses the Group's and the Company's financial
liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flow, including
interests payments computed using contractual rates, based on the
earliest date on which the Group or the Company can be required
to pay. For the purpose of maturity analysis, the maturity date of bank
borrowings with a repayable on demand clause is based on agreed
schedule repayment set out in the loan agreements, disregarding
the repayment on demand clauses. Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the Directors do not consider that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The Directors believe that such bank borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in

the loan agreements.
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e MBRRMEE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BBEREE@)
Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 HBEBEEE)
Liquidity risk (Continued) () RBELERE)
Between Between
Within | and 2 2and 5
| year years years Total
- —E@MFR WELEFR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T T T#T T
Group &8
At 30th June 2013 —E-=%-A=1H
Trade payables BHRMAR 120,352 — — 120,352
Other payables and accruals HinERRRBRER 15,754 = = 15,754
Bank borrowings RITIEE 346,905 — — 346,905
Total k] 483,011 — — 483,011
At 30th June 2012 R-ZZE——FA=+H
Trade payables BHEMNRK 111,032 — — 111,032
Other payables and accruals HtENRRBRER 12,359 — — 12,359
Bank borrowings RITEE 285,366 8819 2,206 296,391
Total B 408,757 8819 2,206 419,782
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e MR

3

3.1

()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BBEREE@)
Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 HBEBEEE)
Liquidity risk (Continued) () RBELERE)
As at 30th June 2013, a subsidiary of the Group did not fulfill a RZFE-=FXA=+AH"
covenant clause set out in a bank loan agreement which stipulated AEEH B R RRE
that dividend payments made by the subsidiary should not exceed HE—HIRRITERER
50% of its profits after tax for each financial year. As of 30th June MR PR B A R A AR 3
2013, facilities granted under this bank loan agreement amounted SRR FEERNRTIE
to HK$68,395,000 while bank loans and trust receipt loans drawn BB D 2B THRE R
under the facilities amounted to HK$4,660,000 and HK$ 13,121,000 RoRZF—=FRA=T
respectively. Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group has B ZRTERERAEE
obtained a waiver in respect of this covenant requirement from the 48 %8 /68,395,000 7T +
bank for the year ended 30th June 2013. However, at the balance AEBEHABRARLEE
sheet date, as the Group did not have unconditional rights to defer 14,660,000/ 7T 2 R 1T E
its settlement of the relevant bank borrowings until the contractual F K 13,121,000 7T 2 15 55
maturity date, all the relevant borrowings totaling HK$17,781,000, WEEH - NEERE - &
including any accrued interest payments, are regarded as immediately SEEKIRTHBE=Z
repayable (Note 29). — =¥ A=THILEEAR
BLIRRE R B RERH
E-EREER  AEEY
A B R R A ] TR 1B
EEBBRTERZANIN
B Rt EFBERK
17,781,000 (B HE B H
BRX) BIERNEE
i (BfzE29) -
Between Between
Within | and 2 2and 5
| year years years Total
—FA —EWMFR MERFRA BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz Tz TR Tz
Company NG
At 30th June 2013 R_E—=F R A=1H
Accruals BiREMR 839 — — 839
At 30th June 2012 N-Z——FXA=1H
Accruals BIRE R 673 — — 673
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRM

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEREEE)
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EBAXEBERE
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's AEENESEREE  RREX
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for SEREEZE  UARERMED
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal BAAEMERE ARG -
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. R g R RENEREBAREE
SR o
The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in AEEEREARE  WRELHE
the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust REMEZHELRE - RTHERER
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments to REERERE  AEEFFEGAE
shareholders, issue new shares or obtain new bank borrowings. XN FREOREEEE - BITHR

JEFMORITER -

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio AEEMAEBLRERAER -
is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as IR RREBFERIAGE ARG
total borrowings (include current and non-current borrowings as shown in E-BBERALREE(RERS
the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and bank balances. Total capital is ﬁéﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ'\]ﬂﬂ%ﬁ&#ﬂﬂﬂﬁg
calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net FRRERERR e - BEX
debt. Rl (s e EEREBRAII)
IEBFE
The table below analyses the Group's capital structure as at 30th June 2013 R_ZE-—=FR_T-_FKA
and 2012: =tB AEEZABHENT
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Total borrowings (Note 29) BEE (M 29) 344,938 294367
Less: Cash and bank balances (Note 25) " Re kA eAAR(ME25) (112,082) (93,349)
Net debt R R 232,856 201018
Total equity BiER 498,159 470,781
Total capital B 731,015 671,799
Gearing ratio BEXRBELEX 32% 30%
The increase in gearing ratio during the year ended 30th June 2013 was RBEZZT-—ZF/ A=THLHF
mainly resufted from the increase in the total borrowings during the year. ER - BFERBEEEMSIBER
BELRLER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

According to HKFRS 7, financial instruments measured in the balance sheet
at fair value are required to disclose the fair value measurements by level of

the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities (level 1)

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

J Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

The carrying amounts of the Group's current financial assets, including
cash and bank balances, trade and bills receivable and deposits and other
receivables, and the Group's current financial liabilities including current
borrowings, trade payables, other payables and accruals approximate their

fair values due to their short maturities.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm's length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
(for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument

are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market

data, the instrument is included in level 3.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets between level | and

level 2 fair value hierarchy classifications.

As at 30th June 2013, the Group's available-for-sale financial asset and
derivative financial instruments are categorised as level 3 financial instruments.
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year

ended 30th June 2013.

R EMBRRM

3 HERREESE)

Sk

A FERT(F)
YHRNERMSEENSRTA
(MBI ZNITESRTE)NA
FERBRHEDEETE © BERN
BEMBABENSRE(WA) -
BE VKB E RN EMET - Wat
E-eRIANDABERBNAM
BEABARUERSE &S
BIRIIAEL2E -

—ARLAE KRB AL IFRIEA
BEMSHE  AZERTAIA
F3E-

FIHEIERABEERYE
M ENEEENEREE -

R-Z—=F A=1+R %8
ZARHEMBEERITESRT
AENBEEIEERMIA - UT
ERBE-_F-—&X A=1+HL
FEANFIBERIANEDHR o

Available-for- Derivative

sale financial financial

assets instruments
e TE Total
MBEE ¢MIA A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET
Opening balance EIEEES 1,317 (2,497) (1,180)
Loss recognised in income statement RBaR R — (1,947) (1,947)
Gain recognised in equity RERER Y = 413 — 413
Closing balance Bk 1,730 (4,444) (2,714)

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgement used in preparing financial statements are continually

evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below.

@

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment
with reference to the estimated periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from use of these assets. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will adjust the
depreciation charge where useful lives or residual values vary with previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-

strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives and actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic review
could resutt in a change in depreciable lives and residual values and therefore

depreciation expense in the future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

®)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment, leasehold
land and land use rights and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to sell.

These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the Continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group's financial position and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the income

statement.

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

©

@

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property individually is determined at
each balance sheet date by independent professional valuers by reference
to comparable market transactions and where appropriate on the basis
of capitalisation of the net rental income/net income, after allowing for
outgoings and in appropriate cases provisions for reversionary income
potential. These methodologies are based upon estimates of future results
and a set of assumptions as to income and expenses of the property and
future economic conditions. The fair value of each investment property
reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in the light of current
market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash

outflows that could be expected in respect of the property.

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment in receivables (including deposits
made) based on an assessment of the recoverability of receivables. This
assessment is based on the credit history of its customers and other debtors
and the current market condition. Provisions are made where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the receivables may not be collectible.
During the year, management considered that the carrying amount of a
deposit for acquisition of property has been impaired and a provision of
HK$9,051,000 has been made, details of which are disclosed in Note 7. The
identification of impairment in receivables requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of the receivables and impairment
is recognised or reversed in the period in which such estimate has been

changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

©

@

Wirite-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to their net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Net realisable value of
inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and variable selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle. Write-downs on inventories
are recognised where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
value of the inventories may not be realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of inventories and write-downs of inventories is recognised in the

period in which such estimate has been changed.

Fair value of denvative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments which are not traded in
an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group
uses its judgement to select an appropriate valuation method and makes
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
balance sheet date. The valuation models require the input of subjective
assumptions, including forward foreign exchange rates, risk free rates and
market volatility. Changes in subjective input assumptions can materially

affect the fair value estimate.

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRM T

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

®

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Judgement
is required in determining the provision for income taxes in each of these
jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations during the ordinary
course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and

deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management considers it is likely that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences or
tax losses can be utilised. When the expectations are different from the
original estimates, such differences will impact the recognition of deferred
income tax assets and income tax charges in the period in which such

estimates have been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRM

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION Kk o HER
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr THET

Turnover EEE

Sales of goods HEEm 1,867,192 1,639,990
Provision of logistic services R IR 1,798 426
1,868,990 640416

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of plastic
materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and engineering plastic

products.

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as the
Executive Directors of the Company. Management has determined the operating
segments based on the reports reviewed by the CODM that are used to assess
performance and allocate resources. The CODM considers the business from the
operations nature and the type of products perspective, including the trading of
plastic materials (“Trading”), manufacturing and sale of colorants, pigments and
compounded plastic resins (“Colorants”), manufacturing and sale of engineering
plastic products (“Engineering plastics”) and other corporate and business activities
(“Others").

Each of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
is managed by different business unit leaders. Inter-segment transactions are
entered into under the normal commercial terms and conditions that would also
be available to unrelated third parties. Information provided to the CODM is

measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N L
5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WEkoHER )
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments for BE-T—=—F A=THILFERH
the year ended 30th June 2013 is as follows: RERRERREZFZIBRENHE
B
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g% EeH IRER Htto x&EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T#T T TERT T#T
Tumover X
— Gross revenue —DEBHE 1,350,782 401,943 213,730 2443 1,968,898
— Inter-segment revenue —HEREEE (95,162) (2,987) (1,759) — (99,908)
Revenue from external customers  IMEBE P IiEs 1,255,620 398,956 211,971 2,443 1,868,990
Segment results AEEE (34,825) 48,772 17,971 12,821 44739
Finance income B w s 60 263 12 — 335
Finance costs HBER (6,316) (1,714) (924) (118) (9,072)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRHEAT(E18),a (41,081) 47,321 17,059 12,703 36,002
Income tax expense HIEX (11,554)
Profit for the year AEHH 24,448
Non-controlling interests IEE (2,389)
Profit attributable to equity NG EY 3y
holders of the Company 22,059
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SFEMBHRFTMEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WEkoHER )
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g% EeH IRER Hito rEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TiEnr TER TR TER TER
Other information: Hin &R -
Additions to non-current assets FERBEELM
(other than financial instruments (hemIAK
and deferred tax assets) BEHBEEIN) 9,952 5,847 5814 196 21,809
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BERRE
and equipment e 528 7,245 8,672 1,147 17,592
Amortisation of leasehold land MET Rt
and land use rights ez 278 207 2 78 595
Provision for/(reversal of) FERBEERE/
impairment of inventories (#E) 474 734 (1,170) (235) (197)
Provision for impairment of B RWFRE
trade receivables pi- 1,101 — — — 1,101
Write-off of other receivables H fth RN — 596 — — 596
Provision for impairment of deposit ~ WIEMI % 2 R &
for acquisition of properties FEER — 9,051 — — 9,051
Unrealised fair value loss on TEEMIARER
derivative financial instruments ATFEER 1,947 — — — 1,947
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments as RZBE—=ZFAAZTHARELEREL
at 30th June 2013 is as follows: ERREZAZIBENDERWT -
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
E%Z EGE IRZR Hith x&EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T#T T TEr TER
Segment assets DEEE 460,648 292,030 160,658 89,432 1,002,768
Total assets BEE 1,002,768
Segment liabilities DEARE 105,589 30,702 17,748 5,632 159,671
Borrowings E3= 281,813 20,127 39,323 3,675 344,938
Total liabilities BEE 504,609
Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRITEBRLE 97
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N b
5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WEkoHER )
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments for BE-T——F A=THILFERH
the year ended 30th June 2012 is as follows: RERRERREZFZIBRENHE
BT :
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 EEH  IiREN ity KREHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT THT TR TR TRT
Tumover = 3
— Gross revenue —DEBHE 1,058,108 374,868 247,446 2608 1,683030
— Inter-segment revenue — D HEHE (15,906) (14,280) (12,428) — (42,614)
Revenue from external customers  SNEPE P &R 1,042,202 360,588 235018 2,608 1,640,416
Segment reslts AEEE (45,253) 34,128 18997 13,425 21,297
Finance income B w s 54 234 16 6 310
Finance costs HBER (7,283) (1384) (1510) (65) (10242)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRHEAT(E18),a (52482) 32978 17,503 13,366 11,365
Income tax expense HIEX (8.230)
Profit for the year ARE M 3,135
Non-controlling interests IER (1,770)
Profit attributable to equity NG EY vl
holders of the Company 1,365
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

G EMBHRRMEE
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WEkoHER )
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
25 FEH  IRZH ity KEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET THET THET THET
Other information: Hi &R -
Additions to non-current assets FERBEEEM
(other than financial instruments (hemIAR
and deferred tax assets) EEHIBEEIN) 459 4255 8,647 297 13,658
Depreciation of property, plant mE - BB K&
and equipment e 455 7419 8,057 1362 17,293
Amortisation of leasehold land METHRLIH
and land use rights Rz EE 33 200 Ey) 79 344
Provision for/(reversal of) BERBEEE/
impairment of inventories (@) 1,579 267 (96) (2432) (682)
Provision for/(reversal of) B HRNRE
impairment of trade receivables %fE/ (BE) — 274 (92) — 182
Unrealised fair value loss on fTEEMIA
derivative financial instruments RERAFEKE 680 — — — 680
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments as RIE——F AA=Z+tHRBEERE
at 30th June 2012 is as follows: ERREZAZIBENDERWT -
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 F6H  IiRZH Hit KEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TR TET TERT
Segment assets DEEE 362,093 301,613 173,534 67491 904,731
Total assets BEE 904,731
Segment liabilities NEEE 80,737 33378 21953 3515 139,583
Borrowings = 229435 17,284 45,727 1921 294367
Total liabilties BAR 433950

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRTARLAR
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SZEMBHRFTMEE

100

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external customers
attributed to Hong Kong for the year ended 30th June 2013 is approximately
HK$998,902,000 (2012: HK$986,956,000), and the total of its revenue from
external customers from other locations (mainly the PRC) is approximately

HK$870,088,000 (2012: HK$653,460,000).

At 30th June 2013, the total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets (there are no employment benefit assets and rights arising
under insurance contracts) located in Hong Kong is approximately HK$ 139,646,000
(2012: HK$124,514,000), and the total of these non-current assets located
in other locations (mainly the PRC) is approximately HK$101,894,000 (2012:
HK$99,611,000).

hERk D IHER &)
AEBUBEAEM BE_T—=
FRA=ZTHLFERBEEZIEB
B P Wz 4 59989020008 T(Z &
— T 198695600078 L) ' MRHHE
tinE(FERTE) 2IBEF K&
%) /870,088,000 (= T — Z F:
653,460,000 ) °

R-ZE—Z&XA=Z+H KepIA
REEREEEMIRBEBZERD
BE(NEEERNEERRBENE
7w )HB139,6460008 T(Z T
— 1245140008 C) 0 MR E
i E(FERTE)ZLEFRRDE
EXAI1018940008 L(ZT—ZF:
99,61 1,0003&7T) °

OTHER INCOME Hig A
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FTET
Rental income HE WA 3,981 3,643

Outgoings in respect of investment properties amounted to approximately
HK$127,000 (2012: HK$139,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER GAINS, NET

R EMBRRM

Hfttlg st — FE

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR
Fair value gains on investment properties (Note 18) REMEN A TEKE (I 18) 18,670 13073
Derivative financial instruments fTEemIA
— forward foreign exchange contracts and interest —RBEEBERR ZINERBREH
rate swap contracts held for trading RMEEBHEH
— unrealised —RER (1,947) (680)
~ realised -2ER 4,424 4958
Net exchange gains INEME % 2,181 l,153
Provision for impairment of deposit for WEE RE
acquisition of properties (Note) B () (9,051) —
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 31(c)) HE B REE (T 31(C) — (120)
14,277 18,384

Note:

In prior year, the Group paid a deposit of RMB7,150,000 (equivalent to HK$9,051,000) for

the acquisition of certain properties in Mainland China. However, the transaction has not been

completed for years as defects in certain title documents are yet to be rectified despite continuous

efforts had been spent in the past. During the year, management evaluated all circumstances,

including the period of time involved since signing the

acquisition agreement, the costs and

benefits to proceed with the transaction, the likelihood of completion in the foreseeable future,

and the possibility of obtaining refund from the seller in cash, concluded that there are significant

uncertainties about the recoverability of the deposit as at 30th June 2013. Consequently, a full

provision was made on the deposit for the year ended 30th June 2013.

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRTARLAR
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

8 BMEIATZAX

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR
Cost of inventories sold excluding manufacturing costs HEFERA(TBEEEKR) 1,611,998 1,433,890
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights (Note 17) MRS 30 Jo 3P PR A 6
(BHEE 17) 595 344
Auditor's remuneration ZEEN S 2,506 2,391
Depreciation: e
— Owned property, plant and equipment -BEME  BEKR 17,592 16,951
— Property, plant and equipment under finance leases - REREMEERALNE
5 Rk — 392
Provision for impairment of trade receivables B SRR EERS L,101 182
White-off of other receivables H fth LSRR AR 596 —
Reversal of impairment of inventories FEREEERD (197) (682)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  BEREHEZ
(Kz=),/ B#E 0 289
Employee benefit expenses, including Directors’ EERMX L (BREESHE)
emoluments (Note 14) (5 14) 109,385 97,960
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings TiREF RERERS 7316 8,327
Repairs and maintenance expenses BIERRERE 3,306 3513
Transportation and packaging expenses EHRBERY 24,552 20,151
Travelling and office expenses EREFRERZ 9,363 8,090
Utility expenses KERX 13,872 12,098
Other expenses HihEH 40,525 37,300
Total cost of sales, distribution costs and HEMA « DIHKARITH
administrative expenses X 1,842,509 1,641,146
Representing: &
Cost of sales HEKA 1,685,100 1,498,896
Distribution costs DA 62,032 51,563
Administrative expenses T 95,377 90,687
1,842,509 1,641,146
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRM

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9 BBKRNER
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEX
Finance income: B Es
— Interest income from bank deposits —RITEFMBBA 335 310
Finance costs: HBER
— Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable —ERAFANREER ZIRT
within five years EEZ 7R (11,230) (10,604)
— Interest element of finance leases —REHEENEHH — Q)
— Net exchange gains on financing activities —RE X IVERER TR 2,158 364
9.072) (10242)
Finance costs, net HBER - %A (8,737) (9932)

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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eV BRRM T

10

104

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on

the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on the Group's subsidiaries

established and operating in Mainland China has been calculated on the estimated

assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation as applicable to the relevant

subsidiaries.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement represents:

BEXH

EBFI BB RME F Aot 5 BB
BHEEHZHABA(E——F &
52 +R%E) 5 ERE - b EBER
RSN R E AR REE 2 B
DR 2 AE R ERBRR RA K
BATZERBEHE -

HAMEBRZBANHA -

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THRT

Current tax: AEFRIA -
Hong Kong profits tax BARGH 3,197 3400
PRC corporate income tax REI R R PAET 8,252 4,255
Under-provision in previous years NEFEERETR 474 213
11,923 7,868
Deferred tax (Note 30) EEBIIR (P 5E30) (369) 362
1,554 8,230

Annual Report 5 E # &
2012/ 2013



10

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRM

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical

amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as follows:

10 BEH )

REBARBERHAEN 2 HRERER
AEBMER I HEMAE 2 ERmH R

ZEBWME

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TEX

Profit before income tax BR A8 A 36,002 11,365

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) BRE165%(ZF—ZF : 165%)

AR BIA 5,940 1875

Effect of different tax rates in the PRC FETRABRZ 2 2,348 1,265
Income not subject to tax IR WA (3,228) (2,837)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes OGIEi 1k s 2,227 1522
Tax losses not recognised AERLBBER 3,618 5964
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses ERNERERREER — on
Under-provision in previous years NEFERETR 474 213
Others At 175 319
11,554 8,230

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF N

THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company to the extent of HK$10,082,000 for the year

ended 30th June 2013 (2012: loss of HK$638,000).

BE-F-SEAASTALER
NER TG EE 2 A ARRE T

RRRREGER(FR)

at

A100820008 L(ZE——F: BE

638,000787T)

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited

BRETARAF
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eV BRRM T

12 DIVIDENDS 12 KR
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Interim, paid, of HK1.0 cent (2012: Nil) per ordinary share BIRAH HARR S B AR 10781
(ZF—=F: §) 3,692 =
Final, proposed, of HK1.0 cent (2012: Nil) per ordinary share BIRREBR S SR .08l
(Z2——F §) 3,692 =
7,384 —
Notes: BiaE
(a)  Ata meeting held on 25th February 2013, the Directors declared an interim dividend of (@) WRZT—=FZA= +£ RET28%

106

HK1.0 cent per share, totalling HK$3,692,000 for the six months ended 31st December
2012, which was paid during the year ended 30th June 2013, and has been reflected as an

appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended 30th June 201 3.

At a meeting held on 27th February 2012, the Directors resolved not to declare any interim
dividend for the six months ended 3 st December 201 1.

At a meeting held on 26th September 2013, the Directors proposed a final dividend of
HK1.0 cent per share, totaling HK$3,692,000. This proposed dividend was not reflected as
dividend payable in these financial statements and will be reflected as an appropriation of

retained eamings for the year ending 30th June 2014.

At a meeting held on 21st September 2012, the Directors resolved not to declare any final
dividend for the year ended 30th June 2012.

Annual Report K $f &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EARNINGS PER SHARE 13
Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue during the year.

R EMBRRM

BREF

-2
FREARBRMIIR D FRRES NG
NERNBRTEBR 2 MEFHHES -

2013 2012
Profit attributable to equity holders of NG EY 3y
the Company (HK$'000) (F%T) 22,059 1,365
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FREBTERR METFIH 369,200,000 369,200,000
Basic earmnings per share (HK cents per share) BREXEFN (SREM) 5.97 0.37
Diluted #E

Diluted eamings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of dilutive potential ordinary
shares arising from the Company's share options. Dilutive earnings per share for
the years ended 30th June 2013 and 2012 equal basic earnings per share as the

exercise of the outstanding share options would be anti-dilutive.

FEEREERNE  EHERTER
Bz METHEEL AR UREME
ABEE N R TEEREREHE
B -MBE-T—=F-A=+tAK=
T-—FARA=+THLMEAFE BT
FROCEREARGEZE  RAitMm
BFEzSREFRFHSNERER

R -

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING DIRECTORS' 14 EEEFXL(BEESHE)
EMOLUMENTYS)

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
Wages, salaries and other allowances T& - #HRHEAMRR 104,336 93,537
Pension costs BIKE AR 5,049 4423
109,385 97,960

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRTARLAR
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e MR

|5 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 15 EEREEEEAEZHE

(a)  Directors’ emoluments @) EFEHz
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year BE_Z-—=F A=THILLFE
ended 30th June 2013 is set out below: BuUEEzMEWMT
Salaries,
other Employer’s
allowances contribution
and benefits to pension
in kind Discretionary scheme
M - bonuses 1)
Fees  HZE BIBME BikE Total
Name of Director ExEps e REYNZ HITEAL 2R B

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TERT TR TERT FRT TR

Executive Directors HITES

Mr HUI Sai Chung Fausibis 650 2,999 — 294 3943
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong TR EE 650 2,999 — 294 3943
Dr WONG Chi Ying Anthony ~ ZF2f+ - 2,323 - 215 2,538
Mr LAl Kam Wah RRES L — 2323 — 147 2,470
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEELL — 1,627 — |64 1,791
Mr NG Chi Ming REBEE - 1,549 - 186 1,735
Independent Non- BUFHTES

Executive Directors

MrHO Wai Chi, Paul AEEEE 200 — — = 200
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIKBEE & 150 — — — 150
Mr CHING Yu Lung BmELE 150 — — — 150
Total k] 1,800 13,820 — 1,300 16,920

Annual Report £ E &
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R EMBRRM

|5 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 15 EEREEEEAEZHME @)
(Continued)
(a)  Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @) EFEHz(E)
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year BE_T——_FR A=THLEFE
ended 30th June 2012 is set out below: BUEZzMEMT :
Salaries,
other Employer's
allowances contribution
and benefits to pension
inkind  Discretionary scheme
e - bonuses ExH
Fees HoAh2 Ak BITEE BRE Total
Name of Director R4 e REDIG HITEAL X K]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT TR TAT THEL
Executive Directors WITES
Mr HUI Sai Chung FEEE 650 2,890 159 281 3,980
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong BN KL 650 2,890 159 281 3,980
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony BETEEL — 2,247 159 185 2,591
Mr LAI Kam Wah RBELL — 2247 159 124 2530
Madam LIU Sau Lai BABR T — 1,573 159 158 1,890
Mr NG Chi Ming RERKE — 1,495 159 179 1,833
Independent Non- BUFNTES
Executive Directors
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul fEstE 200 — — — 200
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BREkBESR & 150 — — — 150
Mr CHING Yu Lung RgExE 150 — — — 150
Total B 1,800 13342 954 1,208 17,304

No Director waived any emoluments during the year (2012: HK$NIl). No
emoluments have been paid by the Group to any Director as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the year (2012: HK$NIl).

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRTARLAR
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|5 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

(b)  Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year include four (2012: four) Directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid and payable

to the remaining individual during the year were as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

[5

EEREEEBEABZHE (@)

() HEREHFHAL

REER ERURRFMAL
oA (ZE—ZF : W) RE
FAEMEEREXZF 2 AMH
RE - R IM—URSHFMALR

FEEZHMFBOT
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries, other allowances and benefits in kind M Ep R REYFS 2,119 2,037
Discretionary bonus BB TEAT 157 329
Pension costs BIRE AR 254 244
2,530 2610

The emoluments of the afore-mentioned individual fell within the band of
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 (2012: HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000).
No emoluments have been paid to the five highest paid individuals (including
Directors and other employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining

the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2012: HK$NIl).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SFEMBHRFTMEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16 W% BMERRE

Furmniture,
Leasehold fixtures
and and Machinery and office
buildings Leasehold and equipment Motor Tools
THELH  improvements equpment il HE vehicles and moulds Total
RgT HENERE KIRRE RELERE "E IARKA an
HK§'000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TERL TARL TAR TAR TAT
At Ist July 2011 R=Z——F+A-A
Cost KA 124440 27,045 162,759 19,032 9,251 1921 344448
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (28907) 6917) (135647) (16991) (5,668) (1,113) (195243)
Net book amount KHE 95533 20,128 27112 2041 3583 808 149,205
Year ended 30th June 2012 HE2-T——F
AAZTHIEER
Opening net book amount HREHE 95533 20,128 27112 2041 3583 808 149,205
Addtions Em - 6,067 2976 1,102 26 69 10430
Exchange differences ERER 1,289 I8 I 3 45 2 1676
Transfer from investment BRARENE
properties (Note 18) (MizE18) 864 = = = = = 864
Transfer to investment BRERENE
properties (2934) - - - - (2934)
Disposalsfwrite-off e/ M = (442) = (35) (86) 0) (564)
Disposals of a subsidiary & - B A
(Note 31(0)) (M331(0) = (64 = (85) = = (149)
Depreciation ik (2.868) (4952) (7,195) (935) (1,210) (133) (17293)
Closing net book amount HREEHE 91,884 20755 23184 2119 2548 745 141235
At 30th June 2012 R-E——FX~B=+A
Cost AR 124,008 32099 168,566 19,209 8,156 1975 354013
Accumulated depreciation 23t E (32,124) (11,344) (145,382) (17,090) (5,608) (1,230 Q12.778)
Net book amount REEE 91,884 20755 23184 2,119 2548 745 141235
Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRITEMLT 111



112

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRM T

|6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

l6 M% BERRE®R)

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Machinery and office
buildings Leasehold and equipment Motor Tools
HELH improvements equipment  fKffh - £E vehicles  and moulds Total
kBT BENREEL HBERRE RBLERE RE IARESR £t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT  TERL  TER  TER TR TER  TER
Year ended 30th June 2013 HEZZT—=F
AAZTHIEFE
Opening net book amount HRE#E 91,884 20,755 23,184 2,119 2,548 745 141,235
Additions bl 1,485 5,030 7411 1,008 82! 15 15,870
Exchange differences EHER 1,337 3 2| 36 3 [ 1,699
Transfer to investment BRERENZE
properties (1,807) — — — — — (1,807)
Disposals/write-off HE/ Mk - (120) - - — — (120)
Depreciation ik (2,850) (5,555) (7,002) (847) (1,198) (140) (17,592)
Closing net book amount MR IRE R A 90,049 20,141 23854 2316 2,204 71 139,285
At 30th June 2013 R-E—=F, A=1H
Cost KA 125,408 36,815 179,504 20,260 8,609 2,101 372,697
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (35,359) (16,674)  (155650) (17,944) (6,405) (1380)  (233412)
Net book amount REFE 90,049 20,141 23854 2316 2,204 7l 139,285
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e MBRRMEE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 6 ¥% - BERRE@)
Net book value of leasehold land and buildings are analysed as follows: METHREFZREFESTOT -
Group
As at 30th June
EL ]
RAR=1H
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong, held on: ERERE AELHRIET
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTFZHE 36,032 39,057
Buildings in the PRC, held on: EFERHFZET
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTFZHE 54,017 52,827
90,049 91,884
(@) Depreciation expense of HK$13,908,000 (2012: HK$13,489,000) has been @ ¥ & B F13908000/8 (= T
included in cost of sales, HK$452,000 (2012: HK$408,000) in distribution —ZF 1 13489,000 L) E B
costs and HK$3,232,000 (2012: HK$3,396,000) in administrative expenses. 85 B B - 4520008 TT(Z &
— 5 1 40800087 E BEES
SR A 32320008 (=8 —=
1339600087 ) B BRETH
i e
(b) As at 30th June 2013, the net book amount of property, plant and b) RZE-—=ZFXA=1H K&
equipment pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to B AR T ¥ (B 42 %8 49 23,388,000 78 7T
approximately HK$23,388,000 (2012: HK$23,475,000). (ZZ— % : 234750008 7L) 2

WE - BERREGEEHTRT
RAKERERITEE -

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRITERAT 113



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRM T

|7 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 17

The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent prepaid

operating lease payments and their net book amounts are analysed as follows:

HEL R T ERE
AEBRAE TR i FRAE s #Ex
REBALERERE  EEEFED
T

Group
58
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
At beginning of the year F4) 15,547 11,313
Transfer from investment properties (Note |8) BEEREME (M 18) — 4,395
Addition #Zm 7,689 —
Exchange differences Rt 298 183
Amortisation B (595) (344
At end of the year FR 22,939 15,547
Geographical analysis: RIE A -
Leasehold land in Hong Kong, held on: ERBRACHE L
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTFEZHE 1,082 [114
Land use rights in the PRC, held on: ERERA DIk AE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTE7HE 21,857 14433
22,939 15547

As at 30th June 2013, the net book amount of leasehold land and land use rights

pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately

HK$2,835,000 (2012: HK$2,853,000).
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e MBRRMEE
18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 REW=
Group
£F
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
At beginning of the year F4 53,775 42,626
Transfer from property, plant and equipment BEENE  BERERE 1,807 2934
Revaluation gain of property, plant and equipment WE - BERREEEE
on transfer to investment properties (Note 28(a)) TR EREEREE
REMF B
(P5E28(a)) 1,893 15
Fair value gains on investment properties (Note 7) REME 2 2 VHERS
(FH&E7) 18,670 13,073
Transfer to property, plant and equipment and leasehold land BREME BB RREN
and land use rights ME L R LR — (5.259)
Exchange difference N AR 180 286
At end of the year FR 76,325 53,775
()  The investment properties were revalued at 30th June 2013 by Chung, Chan @ AEBEIRENMER_T-—=F
& Associates, an independent professionally qualified valuer. Valuations were NASTEBBUEXEENGE
based on current prices in an active market. TREBEEERMGEHNERERE
F o°
(b)  As at 30th June 2013, the fair value of investment properties pledged b) RZZE-—Z=F-A=+H &EY
as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately FHRMEFE 21005000 (=
HK$21,005,000 (2012: HK$15,207,000). T— % :15207,000% ) E &
RYRT BEAEKERSFRITE
=,

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRITERAT 115
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©

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) S §-L/ESE )
The Group's interests in investment properties at their book values are (0 AEERREVMZFZEZZEKHEE
analysed as follows: AT
Group
£F
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRz TRT
In Hong Kong, held on: EEBRE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTFZHE 68,350 46,660
In PRC, held on: ETERE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTFEZHE 7975 7,115
76,325 53,775
The future aggregate minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable (d) BETAHBENCEHE KRR
operating leases are as follows: ERKEEREMAT -
Group
£9
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
Not later than one year —FR 3,008 1,584
Later than one year and not later than five years —FREMNENTE 1,547 39
4,555 1,623

116
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R EMBRRM

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 EBREE
Group
£E
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr THET
Technical know-how SR
Cost AR 4,000 4,000
Accumulated amortisation Ergcdic! (2,000) (2,000)
Accumulated impairment ZFRE (2,000) (2,000)
Net book amount REFE - —

20

During the year ended 30th June 2013, the Directors reviewed the carrying amount

of the technical know-how and considered that the carrying amount of the asset

would exceed its recoverable amount and no reversal of impairment was made

accordingly.

RBE_ZT-—=ZF A=1THIFE
A EEERARMABZERELR
REREECBAET KOS Hik
FHERRMESE -

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 20 AHHENBEE
Group
£E
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
At st July R+tA—H 1,317 1,129
Net gains transfer to equity WS ER  Was 413 188
At 30th June BAA=+H 1,730 1317

Available-for-sale financial asset represents a 3.6% equity interest in an unlisted

company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The amount is denominated in

HK dollar.

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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21 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM 2l BUKHBARRKRRE
SUBSIDIARIES
(a)  Investments in subsidiaries — Company (@) MEBRARE 7]
Company
NG
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Unlisted shares, at cost LM R 62711 62,711
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 30th June 2013 RZE—=F,A=1H  KAR7F
are set out in Note 35 to the financial statements. ZEEMBRAFEHNZE I
&M -
(b)  Amounts due from subsidiaries — Company (b) ERFEL F]— 2 A]
The balances are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand. The ZEBUEER  RERBEREE
amounts are denominated in HK dollar. KEE  WEBINBETRER -
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e MBRRMEE
22 INVENTORIES 22 EE
Group
£
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
Trading stocks Bo9xBESR 183,265 159,124
Raw materials JR#} 81,771 92,069
Finished goods R m 36,406 30,308
301,442 281,501
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of sales in the el Rk NHEK R HER AR
consolidated income statement amounted to approximately HK$1,685,297,000 iZﬁ%ﬁlﬂZ$ & H4 5 1,685297,00078
(2012: HK$1,499,578,000). TL(ZZE—ZF : 1499,578,00087T) °
Reversal of provision for inventories amounted to HK$197,000 (201 2: AEEARFEEZHB 970008 T(ZF
HK$682,000) for the year was included in cost of sales in the consolidated income —ZF 680008 L) c FERELE
statement. o WNERE MR AHEX NP AR -
Inventories amounting to HK$256,596,000 (2012: HK$219,444,000) were held & $£256596000/% (= T — = F:
under the trust receipts bank loan arrangements (Note 29). 219,444,000 %) 2 1T EIRBE T BURR

TERZ 2P A (HE29)

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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e MR RMEE
23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23 BSRURKEKRRE
Group
&9
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
Trade receivables B 5 UK 303,348 261,774
Less: provision for impairment of receivables B EMGUR E R (3,395) (2,282)
299,953 259,492
Bills receivable LS 18,458 21436
318411 280928

The carrying amount of trade receivables are denominated in the following

B RYGRREEA TS REA -

currencies:
Group

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK dollar BTT 106,464 109,343
Renminbi AR 148,943 127,906
US dollar ey 47,941 24525
303,348 261,774

BRI RREREEAFERL

The carrying value of trade receivables approximates their fair values.

HRARERAREZRFPE  INE
HREFEREEBHET AR -

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as the

Group has a large number of customers.
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The majority of the Group's sales are with credit terms of 30 to 90 days. The
remaining amounts are on letter of credit or documents against payment. The

ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice date is as follows:

23

R EMBRRM

BIRURKRERES &)
AEEABNHENEERA=1TE
NTE - HBRUAEARIAFZESR
EIT BHRUFEERAZRERDN
;T

Group
£E

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr TET
Below 90 days 0-90 H 285,099 239,254
91 - 180 days 91-180 H 9,406 15,609
Over 180 days iR 180 A 8,843 6911
303,348 261,774

The credit quality of trade receivables neither past due nor impaired has been
assessed by reference to historical information about the counterparty default rates.

The existing counterparties do not have significant default in the past.

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRTARLAR
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23

122

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As of 30th June 2013, trade receivables of HK$83,965,000 (2012: HK$77,449,000)
were past due but not considered to be impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing

analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

23

ESRURRERRE &)
RZZE—ZFXA=Z+H EHELX
83,965,000 B (=T — Z4F : 77,449,000
AL KEBHRELERE - WEREBD
REESIIBHERERCHNBELE
P WEBHRIEHKARRITNAT

Group
E ]
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT
Past due by ekt
|- 30 days [-30 H 52,957 50,668
31 - 60 days 31-60 H 15,444 13,499
Over 60 days 860 B 15,564 13282
83,965 77449

As of 30th June 2013, trade receivables of HK$3,395,000 (2012: HK$2,282,000)
were impaired. The amount of the provision was HK$3,395,000 (2012:
HK$2,282,000). The individually impaired trade receivables mainly relate to a
number of independent customers which are in unexpected difficult economic

situations. A majority of these trade receivables have been past due by more than
360 days (2012: 360 days).
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R EMBRRM

23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23 ESRURKRERREM@)
Movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables for the Group is as AEEEHRIGUREREZSH AT -
follows:

Group

EL ]

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRz TRT
At beginning of the year F1 2,282 2115
Provision for impairment EER 1,101 182
Receivables written off as uncollectible WSS R AR AU 2 FE IR - (22)
Exchange difference BN ER 12 7
At end of the year FR 3,395 2,282

Bills receivable are mainly with maturity period of within 180 days and are

denominated in the following currencies:

BUEEZIBMETER—B/N\TH
A EATHEEREL :

Group
£

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK dollar BIT — 1,024
US dollar ET 1,306 6,329
Renminbi AR 17,152 14,083
18,458 21436

The carrying value of bills receivable approximates their fair values and there is no

recent history of default on bills receivable.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group transferred certain bills of exchange amounting
to approximately HK$2,320,000 (2012: HK$2,083,000) with recourse in exchange
for cash as at 30th June 2013. The transactions have been accounted for as

collateralised bank advances (Note 29).

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRTARLAR

BUEEZERERARFERORS
I BB ER 2 R -

R-ZB-ZEXAZTRAEEZHE
DA #£123200008 T(ZE—ZF:
2,083,000/ 7T ) KO FTIE R AE < BRI R AR AL
BYRITNBEREL - FEXHEIA
ERMERRITRIR(HIFE29) -
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24 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24 fTEERMIA
Group
£E
2013 2012
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE aff BE BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TET TR
Held for trading FELE
— Forward foreign exchange contracts (Note) ~ — MNE R 145 49 (KisE) 570 5014 233 2,730
Note: BitsE -
Forward foreign exchange contracts SN R HIE A

As at 30th June 2013, the Group had outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts mainly to
sell/purchase US dollars and purchase RMB. The maximum notional principal amounts of these

outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 30th June 2013 were as follows:

RZB-=FRA=TH AEEBRZUWI
EEBANIBAE BXTRERT - K=
F-=FAAZTBUERRUSNERRE L

ZEEREALENT
Group
%8

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTRT FHET
Sell HK dollars for US dollars STHEBITABEAET 1,518,114 2,747940
Sell US dollars for HK dollars THEXTUEABT 8,870 171,600
Sell US dollars for RMB HEETAEAARE 653,640 175,500

Annual Report 5 E # &
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25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 25 BRERBITER
Group Company
%£B NS
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr TET TEr THT
Cash on hand Rekan 464 376 — —
Bank balances RITEEER 11,618 92973 197 245
112,082 93,349 197 245
Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies: Be RBITRBUATIIEE RER
Group Company
£E NF
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET T THET
HK dollar BT 17,238 16923 197 245
Renminbi AR 71,949 56,830 — —
US dollar e 22,667 19,296 — —
Others Hith 228 300 — —
112,082 93,349 197 245

Cash at bank eamns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

The Group's cash and bank balances of HK$72,389,000 (2012: HK$57,925,000) are
deposited with banks in the PRC. The remittance of these funds out of the PRC is

subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRTARLAR

ROTEHRBEEARTERZFHNE
FRERFI S,

AREUANARBREML 2B & RFAT
723890008 T(Z T —ZF:
57,925,000 & ) R Bl 2 RITHETF ©
BEREcELTHAEIRATFERAE
HE.Z SNEE R o
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26 TRADE PAYABLES 26 EZEMAN
A majority of the suppliers are on open account. Certain suppliers grant credit RERREFRLERS G TAKE
period of 30 to 90 days to the Group. ZEB-—BRR=TENTH-
The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows: EHRMNTMRRAINMT -
Group
£E
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Below 90 days 0-90 H 118,716 109,536
91 - 180 days 91-180 H 722 715
Over 180 days i 180 A 914 781
120,352 111,032
The carrying values of trade payables approximate their fair values, and are BORNRCERERAATERS
denominated in the following currencies: WA TSI RELN -
Group
£E@
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRET TR
HK dollar BT 10,397 11,622
Renminbi ARE 34,391 22561
US dollar =L 75,564 76,822
Euro @ﬁ — 27
120,352 111,032
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27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 27 RAEARRKEE
Share capital BE
Number of
ordinary Share
shares of capital

HK$0.10 each  nominal value

BREE BAmEE

0.108TZ HK$'000
EERYE TER
Authorised: ETERA -
At Ist July 2011, 30th June 2012 and 2013 RZE—F+tHA—H —T—=F
R=F—=%-A=1+H 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BREITRERBAR
At Ist July 2011, 30th June 2012 and 2013 RZZE——FtH—HB Z%—Z=F
=#,~A=t+H 369,200,000 36920
Share premium BEEE
HK$'000
TER
At Ist July 2011, 30th June 2012 and 2013 #—%——itﬂ—a —E-CfF
—T-=%5-A=1+H 62,466
Share option scheme BRETE

Pursuant to the share option scheme (the “Existing Scheme") approved and
adopted on 5th December 2002, the Board of Directors of the Company may
offer eligible employees (including Executive Directors) rights to subscribe for
shares of the Company (the “Share Options”). Pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed at the annual general meeting of the Company on 22nd November 2012
(the “Adoption Date"), the Existing Scheme expired on 5th December 2012 was
terminated upon the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme™)
on the Adoption Date. The New Scheme has an expiry of 0 years from the
Adoption Date. Upon the termination of the Existing Scheme, the outstanding
options granted under the Existing Scheme continue to be valid subject to the

provisions of the Existing Scheme.

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BERTAERLR

BER-_ZZ_F+_AARBBIE
RSB RITERESE ] &2
ﬂ%%ﬁﬂﬁ@%ﬁﬁ§$ﬁmzAﬁ
B2RERERBRRADRN NBERE
U%h%bomﬁm:;——¢+—ﬂ
“+ZB(ERBHRFEFAE L
BAN—RRBER RN_T—_F+=
ARHBE RITHBREN BN KMA
ERBBMERESB(HERE
2 )RR - B RES 815 500
BEMBRABTF - RRTERE
BRIER BERITEREERLE
RITHEERE - RERTBRENE 2
BB £ -
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27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (Continued)

128

Share option scheme (Continued)
Movements in the number of Share Options outstanding during the year are as

follows:

27 BRARBRAGEH)
BREE(E)
RAFE RARITHE 2 BRIELBNT

Number of shares subject to
the Share Options
BRETRBREY
2013 2012

At beginning and at end of the year FORER

1,500,000 1,500,000

Details of the options granted under the Existing Scheme outstanding as at 30th
June 2013 and 30th June 2012 are as follows:

RZZE-—=F A=+tHKR=-FT—=%
NAZTHBREBRE SR 2 RTT
FRRFENT

Number of shares subject to

Date of grant Expiry date Exercise price the Share Options
KA e TEEE SRR TR RRE
2013 2012
Employees 3th February 2008 | 2th February 2014 HK$0.78
& —“2T)\F_A+=H —mEZRA+ZH 078#R 1,500,000 1,500,000
1,500,000 1,500,000

Options granted are exercisable within a period of six years within which there is
a total vesting period of three years. Commencing from the first, second and third
anniversaries of the offer date of an option, the relevant grantee may exercise up to
33%, 67% and 100% respectively of the shares comprised in his or her option. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in

cash.

The fair value of these options is to be expensed over the vesting period and no

expense was recognised for the year ended 30th June 2013 and 2012.

Annual Report £ E & &
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27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (Continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

27

The fair values of options granted under the Existing Scheme determined using the

Binomial Option Pricing Model were as follows:

R EMBRRM

BRARRAGEE &)

BRETEH (&)

ERA-EANETERABERERER
BIARHCBREZATERT -

[3th February

2008
—TTN\F
Date of grant of share option R RE R H —AT=H
Average fair value of share options at date of grant X B R R 2 TR TFE HK$0.277
02778 7T

Significant inputs into the valuation model: ERR 2 EXE AR -
Exercise price 1768 HK$0.78
07887
Share price at grant date REL B RE HK$0.72
072%87T
Expected volatility TRE R 66%
Risk-free interest rate ZR R X 1.99%
Expected life of options FEIRIE c A A 6 years
6F
Expected dividend yield FRERE B 6%

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share price retums is

based on the 6-year historical share price movement of the Company prior to the

option grant date.

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRTARLAR

ERBHREQGNEEEMAENE
HREREE  REBE FEAKRERN
R DHTAE
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28 RESERVES

130

(@) Group

28 fiEfe
(a) %5
Other reserves
Afbfate
Available
for-sale
Share Capital financial ~ Exchange
option reserve asset  fluctuation
reserve (note (i) Revaluation reserve reserve Retained
BB EAGE reserve i ER Sub-total earnings Total
BaE (WH)) EfRRE EEEG  KERE Mt REER %8
HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$O00  HK§000  HK$000
Tér fér TEr TEnr TEnr TEn  FEn  FEn
At st July 2011 R-F——%+f-A 415 408 558 439 5760 64,104 27869 342799
Proft for the year KE T - = = = - - 1365 1365
Revaluation gain of property, plant and VEN ST hi
equipment on transfer to investment REpEREERERANR
properties- Gross b e G - - 15 - - 15 - 115
Revaluation gain of avallable A ERKEE EfflE
for-sale financil asset - - - 188 - 188 - 188
Cumency translation differences EiZE - - - - 7007 7,007 - 7007
Dividend peid EST)
~ 2010201 el dvicend pai ~¥H=5-%/
“IEERERE - = = = - - G) (6
At 30th June 2012 RZE-—4E5xF=1H 415 408 5697 627 64,267 71414 276368 347781
At st July 2012 RZE-—F+f-H 415 408 5,697 627 64267 71414 276,368 347,781
Proftt for the year $¢/ﬁﬂ - - - - - — 22,059 22,059
Revaluation gain of property, plant and 0% BRR&ERE T
equipment on transfer to investment RObEREERERANS
properties- Gross LBl -8 - — 1,893 — — 1,893 — 1,893
Revaluation gain of avalable-for-sale AHHERBEE EfflE
financial asset - - - 413 - 413 - 413
Cumency translation differences ERER — — — — 7899 7899 — 7899
Dividend paid ke xf
~ 201272013 nterim dvidend pad -Yf=E-=/
“T-CERRERE = - - - - - B8 (%)
At 30th June 2013 RZF-=%FrA=TH 415 408 759 1,040 7,166 81,619 294735 376,354
Representing: &
Proposed 20122013 #£2-—/
fnal dvidend e S 34
RS 39
Others 2t 29108
294735

Annual Report K $f &
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(b)  Company

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRM

28 B

(b) A]

Other reserves

Hittf#eE
Contributed

surplus Share

(note (ii)) option Retained
BB reserve Sub-total earnings Total
(BiaE(i) FRRERE M RERR aE

HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TRERT TR TER TR TR

At Ist July 2011 RZZ——%+A—H 62511 415 62926 4,600 67526
Loss for the year AEERE — — — (638) (638)
201072011 final IRH=ZT-F/
dividend paid —T——4F
AR R — — — (3692) (3.692)
At 30th June 2012 RZT—Z=F
~NA=TH 62511 415 62926 270 63,196
At Ist July 2012 R-E——%+A—H 62,511 415 62,926 270 63,196
Profit for the year ARERH — — — 10,082 10,082
2012/2013 interim *f=2—=/
dividend paid —T-=FF
FHIR S — — — (3,692) (3,692)
At 30th June 2013 RZZT—=F
NA=TH 62,511 415 62,926 6,660 69,586
Representing: R&:
Proposed 2012/2013 gE-—T-—-/
final dividend e
REIRE 3,692
Others Hof 2,968
6,660

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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28 RESERVES (Continued)
(b)  Company (Continued)

132

Notes:

0

Capital reserve of the Group of HK$408,000 (2012: HK$408,000) represents the
aggregate amount of the non-voting deferred shares of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials Limited and the difference between the nominal amount of the share
capital issued by the Company in exchange for the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation in

1994 (the “Reorganisation”).

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the
consolidated shareholders’ funds of Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited at
the date on which the Reorganisation became effective and the nominal amount
of the Company's shares issued under the Reorganisation. At Group level the
contributed surplus is reclassified into its components of reserves of the undertying

subsidiaries.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay
a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable
value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium account.

Annual Report K $f &
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CaAE

A A)(&)

()

Bt

(i)

(i

A& E 2 B R ££408000
BIT(ZF — — F : 4080008
TINRAEBREEERR A
CEEZERTERONBERR
—ANBEARAREEEE
BERDBETZRAEE
DA PR B B B A Rl 2 IR AR
HELERE AR -

ARBZEHBE TINgi
Hing (International) Company
Limited RERERAH 2 HE
BREESEARAREEAMN
BOZRNEEMEZEZR
REBZEHBHTENBEA
BREMBARZ REESA -

BEARE-NN—FRA8%
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29 BORROWINGS 9 fBE
Group
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THAT
Current borrowings MEEE
Bank loans due for repayment within one year - secured (Note 3.1(e)) ﬁ%ﬁ/\‘—i NEEZ
TER-—FER
( M¢E3 I(e)) 77,640 57,854
Bank loans due for repayment after one year which contain FR—FREREBER
a repayment on demand clause-secured (Note 3.1(e)) ERERIGEXZ
RITEF—FEM
(BHEE3.1(e)) 2,175 10,595
Trust receipt loans due for repayment within one year - secured FR—FNERZET
(Note 3.1(e)) WEER—BHEA
(PHEE3.1(e)) 256,596 219,444
Bank advances for discounted bills (Note 23) RITRRRRIR B (P 23) 2,320 2,083
Bank overdrafts - secured RITEX - FER 6,207 4391
Total borrowings BEE 344,938 294,367
The carrying amount of the Group's borrowings approximates their fair values, and AERERE RAEREATERS
is denominated in the following currencies: WA TSI RER
Group
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
HK dollar BT 234,735 219,626
Renminbi AR 66,006 51,963
US dollar XL 42,537 20497
Euro BT 1,660 2281
344,938 294,367

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRRGEMLE 133
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29 BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 30th June 2013, all of the Group's bank borrowings are wholly repayable within

five years.

The amounts repayable based on the scheduled repayment date set out in the loan

agreements ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand clause are as follows:

29

EE&
RZZE-=FAA=TA  KAEEOR
AEREERAEARE -

REEFHEERRELERRITE
HEFGEBREEESEMT

Bank borrowings

BITRE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
Within | year —FR 344,938 283,772
Between | to 2 years —FEMF — 8,486
Between 2 to 5 years MEERF = 2,109
344,938 294,367

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the weighted

average interest rates at the balance sheet date are as follows:

REERBREAKEZERYMEZ
SR LI FRRMNT -

Group
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
— at fixed rates —EEH = 331,278 283,567
— at floating rates — R E)H =X 13,660 10,800
344,938 294,367

134

Annual Report 5 E # &
2012/ 2013



29

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRM

BORROWINGS (Continued) 9 BE#E
003 002
HKS RMB UsD ER H RVB UsD ELR
Bn  ARE ES B AT AR® i B
Trust receipt loans [ERREER 246% - 228% - 251% - 24T% -
Shortterm and longemn bank loans RERRBRIER 2% 820% - 256% 181% 909% - 266%
Bank advances for discounted bills PIREEDR - T.11% - - - 8.56% 1.75% -

Bank borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and equipment (Note [6),
leasehold land and land use rights (Note 17) and investment properties (Note |8)
of the Group.

The bank advances for discounted bills with recourse have been accounted
for as collateralised bank advances. The discounted bills receivable and the
related proceeds of the same amount are included in the Group's trade and bills
receivables (Note 23) and short-term borrowings respectively at the balance sheet

date.

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRTARLAR

BOEFAAREERIONE  BER
REME ) HELHRLIHERE
(B 17) RIRE W (M 18) B

WM EREZMRREBA TRITHE
RTBHREFABERCHORITER - R
BEABRRAMSMAZTERERERAZ
RBAERIMNEERAREZE SR
Wk R MR (MR 23) R HIE &
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30 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred income taxes are calculated in respect of temporary differences under the

liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance

sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred

income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined

after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

30 EAEFE
BEREHIERANEEREBARE
BIEREMAREANGEEREREE
HE -

ERETARTENSAENREER
AABAAGERE  BETHEHER
F—M A AR REEREHEE
HEEEERKE Bt ABEERR
TIEBREERBERAIIK :

Group
£E
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
Deferred tax assets BEHIEEE 4,924 5428
Deferred tax liabilities ELHEARE (4,457) (5.400)
467 28
The net movement on the deferred tax account is as follows: BRBETHMEHRERNFEHNT -
Group
£E
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERT
At beginning of the year F1 28 314
Credited/(charged) to consolidated income statement (Note 10) fE&RA MasRat A/ (308) (HI3E 10) 369 (362)
Exchange difference ERER 70 76
At end of the year FR 467 28
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30 DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 30 REBEE)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking FRNEEHBEERAGZ#B(EE—
into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as B E < AR EAT) T -
follows:
Deferred tax liabilties: ELHBALE
Fair value gains on
investment properties Accelerated tax depreciation Total
RENMELATENE MERBRE 88
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TER TR TER TR AR TAT

At beginning of the year F4) 1,000 826 6,007 6113 7,007 6,939
Charged//(credited) to income statement & &I/ (FTA) 4 154 (134) (141) (110) 13
Exchange difference BAER 25 20 48 35 73 55
At end of the year ER 1,049 1,000 5921 6,007 6,970 7007
Deferred tax assets: BEHIBEE -
Provisions Tax losses Decelerated tax depreciation Total
R HHER HERBRE 2

2013 01 2013 2012 2013 01 2013 00
HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS00D  HK$O000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS00
Téx TEr  TEx  TEnr  TRx  TEr Tz Tix

At beginning of the year L) 3179 232 1,356 1948 2,500 2983 7,035 7253
Credited(charged) to income statement fElERAT A/ (k) 807 800 (309) (592) (239) (557) 259 (349)
Exchange difference ER=E 80 57 = = 8 74 143 13l
At end of the year EX 4066 3179 1,047 1,356 234 2500 7437 7035

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRITERAT 137
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DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry forward to the extent that
the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
At 30th June 2013, the Group had unrecognised tax losses to be carried forward
against future taxable income amounted to approximately HK$107,182,000 (2012:
HK$93,094,000). These tax losses have no expiry date except that approximately
HK$ 1,484,000 (2012: HK$9,012,000) will expire from 2014 to 2017. The potential
deferred tax assets in respect of these tax losses which have not been recognised

amounted to approximately HK$17,811,000 (2012: HK$16,127,000).

As at 30th June 2013, deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to profits earned by certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounting to
approximately HK$90,910,000 (2012: HK$69,527,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable

that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

At 30th June 2013 and 2012, the Company had no material deferred tax assets or

liabilities.
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31  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 3 RERERER
(a)  Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash generated from () BHAENEESREEL HE
operations: HEZ
Group
EL ]
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Profit before income tax 754 A4 36,002 1,365
Adjustments for: FHEBIER
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment —M% - BERREHE 17,592 17293
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, —HENE  BEREHEZ
plant and equipment (Wz=),/ B8 () 289
— Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights — T E Tt o 4 b {5F PR A 8 595 344
— Unrealised fair value loss on derivative —“RHEEBEITEERMIAL
financial instruments held for trading AERATEERE 1,947 680
— Fair value gains on investment properties —REMENRTEKS (18,670) (13,073)
— Provision for impairment of trade receivables — B 5 RYFUREER 1,101 182
— Reversal of impairment of inventories —-FEREERRER (197) (682)
— Impairment of deposit for acquisition —RBYEZERE
of properties 9,051 —
— Write-off of other receivables — H A B TR ER 596 =
— Loss on disposal of a subsidiary —HE-MBRARAEE — 120
— Interest income —FIBMA (335) (310)
— Interest expense —FEZH 11,230 10,606
— Exchange differences —ERER 5,141 4,635
Changes in working capital: LEREHEE :
— Inventories -FE (19,744) 49,495
— Trade and bills receivables, other B REFRERRE
receivables, prepayments and deposits Hip g - BAR kRS (43,804) (848)
— Trade payables, other payables and —-BHEMR - EEARR
deposits received and accruals ElEIE kEREMR 13,520 3,806
Cash generated from operations REXBEEZRE 14,024 83902
Ngai ng;;;?—? gcéén’za;]y Limited 139
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31  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 3 RERERERMS)

(b)  In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sales of property, ) EHEEHRZEEXA  HEYF
plant and equipment comprise: B RZEHFZH O -
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
Net book amount (Note |6) REFE (M 16) 120 564
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HENE BERSZE L
plant and equipment (Note 8) Wz /(&) (st s) (289)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME « BiE RXEMER
plant and equipment 121 275
(c)  Disposal of a subsidiary (c) HE—MEBLA]
On 27th June 2012, the Group entered into an agreement to dispose of its R-ZE——FA-++tH A&
entire 55% equity interests in EMAA Logistics (Hong Kong) Limited (“EMAA EREERSYRERAR (RS
Logistics") to the an independent third party, who owns the remaining 45% MRl KRB A 2N+ HRENS
equity interests in EMAA Logistics. After the disposal, the Group does not UR=FHEKGZ  MALHERS
hold any interests in EMAA Logistics. MREHES AT RRE - Rt
HERKREETEREREDRZ
{Ef s -
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31  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued 3 RERERERMS)

(c)  Disposal of a subsidiary (Continued) (© HE—HERTE)
Details in respect of the disposal of this subsidiary are as follows: HE LB RIMNFENT
HK$'000
TET
Net assets disposed of HERFEE
— Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) /LB S ACEY 149
— Trade and other receivables — 85 R HE R 894
— Cash and bank balances —R& RRITERR 67
— Bank overdrafts —RITEX (96)
— Trade and other payables — B NEHENR (1,529)
(515)
Less: Non-controlling interests W IR R 635
120
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 7) HEME A REE(ME7) (120
Cash considerations ReRE -
Cash and cash equivalents of the subsidiary disposed HEMRBRRNRERAEEHE 29
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HEMRBRRFFRETA 29
(d)  For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash @ BEEETREXME  HERE
and cash equivalents include the following: SEFOELTEEL -
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Cash and bank balances (Note 25) Be kBT (ME25) 112,082 93,349
Bank overdrafts (Note 29) RITEX (ME29) (6,207) 4391)
105,875 88,958

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRITERAT 141
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32 COMMITMENTS

142

@

®)

Capital commitments
At 30th June 2013, the Group had the following capital commitments for
addition of property, plant and equipment:

32

I

() EFFAE
R-Z—=F,A=1+R ' £58
BBEY%E  BERSEERRE
mT

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR

Contracted but not provided for BROBRER 7,481 6909

Commitment under operating leases
As at 30th June 2013, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and

buildings as follows:

(b) KEHERE
R-ZE—=%,A=+H X%E
BRTFIEREIE 2 AR+ Kkig
FLARBEERE L RRED

HERR -
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTET
Not later than one year —FR 4,628 4,135
Later than one year and not later than five years —FREMERTE 1,218 2321
Later than five years L& 486 —
6,332 6,456
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, which owns 53.3% of the Company's shares. The remaining
46.7% of the shares were widely held. Substantially all of the shares of Good Benefit

Limited are beneficially owned by certain Directors of the Company.

The Directors of the Company are regarded as key management of the Group
and details of compensation paid to them are disclosed in Note |5 to the financial

statements.

The Directors are of the opinion that no other material related party transactions

had been undertaken by the Group during the year.

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
The Directors regard Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in the British

Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company.

R EMBRRM

33 BHEALRS
NEE f Good Benefit Limited (FER B &
AHESHMKLc AR)ES - EEAAR
ARASZET=H=IK#E H#ZA
AZETAEHERERBZRE ° Good
Benefit Limited BE ER# D REAARR
AZHPEEERIFA

ARBEAESHREATEEIER
TEAR  EFAFMERGAMBH
KU ISHE

EERRAKEARTFENY ELEH
HEREBEALRS

34 BRAERLT
BEERERD B RERER AR AGood
Benefit Limited (7 54 B Jg & & & s Ak 3L

ZRA)
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35 FEMEBAT
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2013: RZZE—=FXA=+H XRAAZE
BHBAAMT :
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
* kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name AR EE BRIRAR Principal activites ~ RNATFAZ
=L R EANER BRA/EMER IREHK BERRFEIL
Ngai Hing (International) British Virgin Islands US$100 Investment holding 100
Company Limited HERLES E REER
(Note b) (FifzEb)
Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$93,200000  Manufacture and sale of colorants 100
Materials Ltd. * wholly foreign 93,200,000/ 7T and compounded plastic resins
REREBBRE - owned enterprise BEREEEEE R
BRAF B Ryl
*SNEBELE
Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
BRITARLA
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

*kind of legal entity

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/

registered capital

TEMBEAR(E)

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

Name SRR i B ERTRHAR Principal activites ~ RATEFEZ
=1 R*E AR BRE/EREE IREHK BERRFEIL
Hong Kong Colour Hong Kong 500,000 Manufacture and trading of 100
Technology Limited B ordinary shares of colorants and compounded
BEEXRRQT HKS ! each plastic resins
500,000 & A BELRBREERHR
B BT EEA NN
Ngai Hing Engineering Hong Kong 2,000,000 Manufacture of 76.2
Plastic Materials Limited oy ordinary shares of engineering plastic
RETRREHARRAR HK$ I each products
2,000,000 & @k RUETR
BB PRBEM
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 1,000 Investment holding and 100
Materials Limited BB ordinary shares of property holding
REZEBRHERAA HK$! each REERK
1,000 & 3B BENR
B BT
500,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$ | each (note ¢)
500,000 £ iz S
EERER BT
(FffsEc)
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 500,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Materials (Hong Kong) B ordinary shares of BEEBBRM
Limited HK$! each
BRABBRR(BA) 500,000 % @&
BRAT SR
Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$34,400,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Materials Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign 34,400,000 & 7T colorants and compounded

EERELERH
BRAR

- owned enterprise
HE
*HEBELE

Annual Report £ E & &
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully
paid up share capital/

registered capital

TEMBEAR(E)

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

Name B R i B CRITRERE Principal activites ~ AATEFEHZ
#8 R+ ENER BRAE/ERES IREH BRREXEIL
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$10,500,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Materials Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign 10,500,000 % 7T colorants and compounded
EERAEBRREM - owned enterprise plastic resins
BRAF P BERHESBT
*INEBELRE REE A
NHH Coltec Limited Hong Kong 5,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
REREFR AT ) ordinary shares of plastic products
HK$ | each BHER
5,000 & A% HEBBEM
BRIET
Ngai Hing Engineering The PRC US$200,000 Trading of engineering 762
Plastics (Shanghai) Co, Ltd. ~ * wholly foreign 200,000 7T plastic products
RET B - owned enterprise BEIREBER
(LB)BRAT 5
*SNEBELR
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing The PRC US$100,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign 100,000 € 7T compounded plastic resins
EERERE - owned enterprise BEZGH
BRAF P K& AR
*SNEBELRE
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Hong Kong 1,000,000 Trading of engineering 762
(Hong Kong) Limited B ordinary shares of plastic products
BRATERER(EA) HK$ ! each EETREBEM
BRAT 1,000,000 & A

BRIAT

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited

BRITARLA
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Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/

registered capital

TEMBEAR(E)

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

Name M B CRITRHRE Principal activites ~ AQFHEZ
£5 R EAER BRAE/ERES IEXY BRREXESH
Xiamen Ngai Hing Hong The PRC US$200,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Plastic Materials Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign 200,000 7T colorants and compounded
EFIRETEBRE - owned enterprise plastic resins
= YNG I RERHERBHR
*IEBELE & B AN EE
Guangzhou Ngai Sog Hing The PRC RMB 10,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Co, Ltd. * wholly foreign 10,000,000 A R #& BEBRBRE
BMmREERE - owned enterprise
AR o
*INEBELE
Shanghai Ngai Sog Hing The PRC US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Co, Ltd. * wholly foreign 400,000 7T BEBRBRE
LERERER - owned enterprise
REEEBRAT o
*INEBELE
NHH Biodegradable Plastics Hong Kong 10,000 Manufacture and sale of 85
Company Limited BB ordinary shares of biodegradable plastic
RERREHARAR HK$ ! each materials
10,000 & &% RERHE
B IET RREBRE
Ngai Hing Engineering The PRC HK$8,000,000 Trading of engineering 762
Plastics (Dongguan) Co,, Ltd. ~ * wholly foreign 8,000,000 7T plastic products
RERTIIRREH - owned enterprise BETRZBEM
= YNG e
*HEBELE
Shanghai Coltec Plastic The PRC US$200,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Co, Ltd. * wholly foreign 200,000 7T compounded plastic resins

LigEgER
H5ERAT

- owned enterprise
3
*HEEELE

Annual Report £ E & &
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

35 FEWEBLATH)

Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
* kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name FMAL S ERTREBE Principal activites ~ ADQFHEZ
#8 R EAER BRAE/ERES TREK BRRFEIL
Dongguan Coltec Plastic The PRC HK$3,000,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign 3,000,000 87T compounded plastic resins
REBEFEH - owned enterprise BEZEGHK
BHARAH P E EEANENE
*ONEBEE
NHH Worldwide Logistics Hong Kong 1,000,000 Logistics Service 84
Limited Bk ordinary shares of Wi AR %
BERRMRARA A HK$! each
1,000,000 & 3B %
FRIET
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic The PRC US$200,000 Manufacture of engineering 762
Materials (Shanghai) Ltd. * wholly foreign 200,000 7T plastic products
RITEBE(LE) - owned enterprise BETREBER
BRAF 3
*HEEELE
Tianjin Ngai Sog Hing The PRC US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Co, Ltd. * wholly foreign 400,000 7T BEBRBRE
RERE R - owned enterprise
BEARAH i
*SNEBELE
Crown Hero Limited Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares Logistic services 54.6
mARRAT BE 100,000 &R MR RS
NHH Investment Limited Hong Kong 10,000 Investment holding 100
(previously known as oy ordinary shares of REZR
Letibe Limited) HK$ | each
BETRABRAF 10,000 & &
(R : REJBRADA]) R IBT
Guangzhou Ngai Hing Hong ~ The PRC RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Plastic Materials Ltd. * wholly foreign 3,000,000 A R #& BEEZBRE
EMDRETEEEN - owned enterprise
BRAH il
*HEBELE
Ngai ngﬂngl;-? gc&n’zagn]y Limited 147
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
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Notes:

@

(®)

All the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and BVI are limited liability companies. All

subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

Other than Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited, which is directly held by the
Company, all the principal subsidiaries listed above are indirectly held by the Company.

The holders of the non-voting deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited
(“NHHPML") shall not be entitled to any participation in the profits or surplus assets of
NHHPML and they are not entitled to receive notice of or attend or vote at any general

meeting of NHHPML in respect of their holdings of such deferred shares.

Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited has been granted an option by the holders of
the non-voting deferred shares to acquire these shares for an aggregate cash consideration

of HK$4.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
Directors, principally affected the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Annual Report K $f &
2012/ 2013

35

FEMBLE 4

FiazE

(@

FEREERERE LA BEMKILZ
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFHGBE

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial years are as AEERBENEMBREEBF 2 XE  BE
follows: REBHT :

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$000  HK$000 ~ HK$O00  HKF000  HK$000
TRRT TAT TAT TAT TAT

Results £
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders /A B SR (G

of the Company wA/(E1R) 22,059 1,365 31,102 28443 (20,640)
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Total assets BERE 1,002,768 904,731 948,748 812944 592,040
Total liabilities BfEEE (504,609)  (433950)  (484037)  (386,104)  (193,280)
Non-controlling interests Il (22,419) (23613) (22,526) (20831) (19,348)
Capital and reserves attributable to NS

the Company's equity holders R 475,740 447,168 442,185 406,009 379412

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited @
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited
NHH Coltec Limited

Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Materials Limited

Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited
NHH Biodegradable Plastics Company Limited

Hong Kong Office:

Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre,
10 Wo Shing Street,

Fo Tan, New Territories,

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2693 1663

Fax: (852) 2694 0877

Website: http://www.nhh.com.hk

E-mail address: info@nhh.com.hk

Hong Kong Factory:

No. 9 Dai Shun Street,

Tai Po Industrial Estate,

Tai Po, New Territories,

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2660 0208/2693 1772
Fax: (852) 2667 4831/2694 0017

Dongguan Factory:

Chiling Industrial Zone, Houjie Town,
Dongguan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 769-8558 8755  Zip: 523940
Fax: (86) 769-8558 1756
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(REREZMALZFRAF)
RABBEM(FE)ERAF
RABSARLA
RETIRERARDT
RATREM(FE)ERAF
RERREHBRRF
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RN R

REEHT 105K
BEIEPLEIE

FiE 0 (852) 2693 1663

fEE : (852) 2694 0877

A4« http//www.nhh.com.hk
EF B+ info@nhh.com.hk

ERBIL
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AT ¥

RIBE 9%

T3 ¢ (852) 2660 0208/2693 1772
{BE : (852) 2667 4831/2694 0017
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Guangzhou Office: BNHBERE
A1806, Center Plaza, AR
No. 161 Linhe Road West, BN
Tianhe District, A&
Guangzhou, WA 161 5%
The People’s Republic of China FREIR E5 A1806
Tel: (86) 20-3831 0226  Zip: 510620 F5E 0 (86) 20-3831 0226 BHEIRIE : 510620
Fax: (86) 20-3831 0223 BE : (86) 20-3831 0223
Shanghai Office: LEHWEE
Unit E, 16th Floor, hEARANE
Zhao Feng Universe Building, Ligm
No. 1800 Zhongshan West Road, F L7 1800 5%
Shanghai, KERIEKE
The People’s Republic of China |61 E B
Tel: (86) 21-6440 0997  Zip: 200235 TaE 1 (86) 21-6440 0997 BHURSE : 200235
Fax: (86) 21-6440 0977 BE : (86) 21-6440 0977
Shanghai Factory: LRt
No. 8100, Songze Ave. FEE A RAANE
Qingpu Industrial Zone, Ligm
Shanghai, BRIXRRE
The People’s Republic of China FAE A 810055
Tel: (86) 21-6921 3333 Zip: 201707 FiE 0 (86) 21-6921 3333 EEURSE 1 201707
Fax: (86) 21-6921 5555 BE : (86) 21-6921 5555
Qingdao Factory: BB
Haier (Jiaozhou) International Industrial Zone, REARAME
Jiaozhou ECO & TECH Development Zone, Qingdao, BEERMNEERMFAE R
The People's Republic of China AR (BN ER TXE
Tel: (86) 532-8727 3100 Zip: 266300 BTHE 1 (86) 532-8727 3100 EHURSE : 266300
Fax: (86) 532-8727 3110 {BE : (86) 532-8727 3110

Ed

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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Chengdu Office:

Room 2919, Building B,

Longhu 3000 Constellations,

No.2 Jianshe North Road Section 3,
Chengdu City, Sichuan Province,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 28-8328 5026 Zip: 61005
Fax: (86) 28-8328 5126

Xiamen Factory:

[/F & 2/F, J-7 Building, Yongquan Industrial Park,

Guankou Town, Jimei District,
Xiamen City, Fujian Province,

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 592-6093211  Zip: 361023
Fax: (86) 592-6093600

Tianjin Office:

Room 1616, No. 349 Nanjing Road,
Nankai District, Tianjin,

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 22-8752 8026  Zip: 300073
Fax: (86) 22-8752 8109
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